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Tuesday, June 19, 2007


--- Upon commencing at 9:11 a.m.


MS. SPOEL:  Please be seated.  Is it possible to have some more light on this part of the room?


Good morning.  This is a hearing of the Ontario Energy Board on an application by Hydro One Networks Inc. under section 99 of the Ontario Energy Board Act, for approval to expropriate lands for the purpose of the construction of an overhead 115 kV transmission line to supply electricity to a Toyota plant, which will be built in the City of Woodstock. 


Sitting today, my name's Cathy Spoel, and with me is Bill Rupert.  May I have appearances, please.


APPEARANCES: 

MS. CAMPBELL:  Donna Campbell on behalf of the Ontario Energy Board, assisted by Robert Caputo and Neil McKay.


MR. ENGELBERG:  Michael Engelberg, counsel for Hydro One Networks Inc.  I'm here with our witness, Glen Hoglund, and assisted by Ruth Grey.


MS. NEWLAND:  Helen Newland on behalf of Toyota Motor Manufacturing Canada Inc.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  MacDougall.  The initial is R., M-A-C, two Ls.  I act for the Streutkers and the Tuns.


MS. SPOEL:  Thank you, Mr. MacDougall.  Any other appearances?  


Mr. MacDougall, just for your information, you can choose.  It's not the practice before our tribunal to require counsel to stand when they address the Board.  If you prefer to sit, that's fine.  I think others will probably be doing that.  It's entirely up to you, however, whichever you feel more comfort with.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Thank you, Madam Chair.  I may well do both, because I'm used to standing, but thank you very much.


MS. SPOEL:  That's fine.


Are there any preliminary matters?


PRELIMINARY MATTERS:

MS. CAMPBELL:  The only preliminary matter I've been aware of is how to use the microphones.  And this is important.


The microphones stay on at all times.  If you wish to mute them, you must push the button at the base and hold it for the entire time.  Once you release it, it is live again.


You are asked not to grab the microphone and cover it with your hand, as I did.


MS. SPOEL:  Thank you.


One other matter about the sound system.  Apparently Blackberries, as they send and ‑‑ receive and transmit, even I think if they're not buzzing, interfere with the sound system.  So if it's possible to deactivate them, that would be helpful too, especially to the court reporters. 


Any other preliminary matters?  


If not, then, Mr. Engelberg, we'll start with you.


MR. ENGELBERG:  Thank you, Madam Chair.  This is an application for expropriation under section 99, and my client, Hydro One Networks Inc., has filed an application with the Board.  Parties and intervenors have it, as well.  Mr. Hoglund, who is the witness that I'll be calling on behalf of Hydro One, will have it and will be referring to it.  


So, with your permission, I would now like to call Mr. Hoglund as a witness.


MS. SPOEL:  Mr. Hoglund, can you come forward to be sworn, please.


MR. ENGELBERG:  And would you like Mr. Hoglund to testify from here?


MS. SPOEL:  Again, it's really in your hands, whatever is ‑‑ well, perhaps for ‑‑ what's the spot that's easiest for everybody to see him?  Probably if he's sitting approximately where he was, but you might want to move over a bit.


MR. ENGELBERG:  All right. 


MS. SPOEL:  I just want to make sure it's a place that Mr. MacDougall and Ms. Campbell and ‑‑ maybe... 


MR. ENGELBERG:  How about right here? 


MS. SPOEL:  If he sat there, Mr. Engelberg, if you moved over a bit, perhaps that would work.


HYDRO ONE NETWORKS - PANEL 1


Glen Marvin Hoglund, Sworn


EXAMINATION IN-CHIEF BY MR. ENGELBERG:

MR. ENGELBERG:  All right.  Mr. Hoglund, could you state your full name, please.


MR. HOGLUND:  Glen Marvin Hoglund.


MR. ENGELBERG:  And I understand you're employed by the applicant, Hydro One Networks Inc.?


MR. HOGLUND:  Yes.  


MR. ENGELBERG:  And could you please tell us what your position is with the company.


MR. HOGLUND:  My position is manager of project management within engineering and construction services.


MR. ENGELBERG:  And how long have you been with Hydro One and its predecessor, Ontario Hydro? 


MR. HOGLUND:  Almost 30 years. 


MR. ENGELBERG:  And do you have knowledge of the matter that forms the subject of the notice of application that's been filed with the Board? 


MR. HOGLUND:  Yes. 


MR. ENGELBERG:  And you're familiar and agree with the material that has been filed?


MR. HOGLUND:  Yes, I do.


MS. SPOEL:  Mr. Engelberg, were you planning to introduce the application and have it marked as an exhibit?   I'm not sure.  Maybe it already has an exhibit number, Ms. Campbell, as prefiled evidence?


MS. CAMPBELL:  No, it doesn't have an exhibit number.  We could make the application the first exhibit, and for those who are not familiar with our processes, for some reason we use J for exhibits.  So this would be J.1.  And J.1 will be the application and the supporting material with the application, or the application itself? 


MR. ENGELBERG:  I'd like it to be the application, together with the supporting material.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Thank you.


EXHIBIT NO. J.1:  APPLICATION AND SUPPORTING MATERIAL 


OF HYDRO ONE NETWORKS

MR. MacDOUGALL:  And am I correct that's all in one big document?


MS. CAMPBELL:  Yes.  And just to confirm what we are  talking about, it is a brief that has -- on its face page, it's bound with Burgar Rowe binding, which is B-U-R-G-A-R R-O-W-E, and the title page, it says, "Application".  The application itself is five pages in length, and the supporting documentation that is with the application has 11 tabs.  


And the material that is in support of the application is the material that's contained behind each of those tabs, and that constitutes the prefiled evidence, I believe, also.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  That's fine.  I believe I have it, save and except I don't have anything for Burgar Rowe, but, anyway, let's... 


MS. CAMPBELL:  No, it's just the cover on the one that I have. 


MR. MacDOUGALL:  I don't have that.


MS. CAMPBELL:  All right. 


MR. MacDOUGALL:  That's fine.  Oh, Madam Chair, can I raise one thing, and just so that we have it clear, when I look at it, I see that there are about ten named parties.  If I can refer you to the page.


  And the question I had was:  Is there an affidavit of service that all the parties are before the Board? 


MS. CAMPBELL:  There is an affidavit that indicates everyone who was a party was served.  I believe the -- Hydro One would have that affidavit.  Those who are interested in participating in the hearing are present, and those who requested intervenor status were granted intervenor status. 


MR. MacDOUGALL:  I appreciate that, but I understood that it is usual, in proceedings such as this, that there be an affidavit of service that all parties have been served.


 MS. SPOEL:  Oh, I believe that's what Ms. Campbell is saying.  It has been filed with the Board --


MR. MacDOUGALL:   Thank you. Thank you.


MS. SPOEL:  -- earlier in the procedure.  I don't know that we have a copy of it with us but there was one.


MS. CAMPBELL:  I did not bring the affidavit with me but, yes, I have seen it, and it's filed with the Board.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  That's fine.


MR. ENGELBERG:  Thank you.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Thank you.


MR. ENGELBERG:  I don't propose to take Mr. Hoglund through the whole application and the documents appended to it, because he has stated that he's agreed with the contents, but I did want to refer to a couple of the items in there and ask Mr. Hoglund a few questions.


Mr. Hoglund, if you would, please, turn to exhibit 11, which is the last tab in the application documents.  I refer in particular to section 7.


MR. HOGLUND:  Is this the electricity transmission licence -- 
    


MR. ENGELBERG:  Yes, it is.    


MR. HOGLUND:  Yes, I have that. 


MR. ENGELBERG:  If I understand, if I can summarize, it says that:

"the licensee..." -- which in this case is Hydro One -- "...shall upon the request of a consumer or others provide that person with access to the licensee's transmission system."


Can you tell us how that happened here in the context of this customer, Toyota?


MR. HOGLUND:  Yes.  Toyota approached Hydro One to have electricity service provided to their planned facility.  On that request, we proceeded with them to plan the required electricity facilities.


MR. ENGELBERG:  And am I correct in stating, Mr. Hoglund, that it is Hydro One's understanding that because of section 7, Hydro One must do so upon the request of a consumer; is that correct?


MR. HOGLUND:  That's correct.


MR. ENGELBERG:  I would like to refer you to one more item, Mr. Hoglund, a couple of excerpts from the Electricity Act.


MR. HOGLUND:  Mm-hm.


MR. ENGELBERG:  And I have copies for others.  I'd like to refer you first, Mr. Hoglund -- 


MR. ENGELBERG:  Would this be J.2?


MS. SPOEL:  I don't think we need to mark this as an exhibit, Mr. MacDougall.  This is an excerpt from legislation.  It's not usually our practice to mark legislative excerpts as exhibits.


MR. ENGELBERG:  I'd like to refer you the section 26 of the Electricity Act, Mr. Hoglund, because of the fact that we have already looked at section 7 of Hydro One's licence.  Could you please read section 26.


MR. HOGLUND:  "A transmitter or distributor shall 

provide generators, retailers and consumers with non-discriminatory access to its transmission or distribution systems in Ontario in accordance with its licence."


MR. ENGELBERG:  And if you could, because of the fact that it refers to "consumers" in section 26(1), could you read section 2(1) above it.


MR. HOGLUND:  "Consumer means a person who uses for 

the person's own consumption electricity that the person did not generate."


MR. ENGELBERG:  Thank you, Mr. Hoglund.  And just so that we can be clear, is it Hydro One's understanding that because of this legislative requirement it must provide access to its transmission system to a consumer such as Toyota when requested? 


MR. HOGLUND:  Yes, it is.


MR. ENGELBERG:  Thank you.  Mr. Hoglund, can you tell us why Toyota approached Hydro One, why Toyota needs the transmission line?


MR. HOGLUND:  Well, Toyota's in the process and at the time were planning a large facility to be built in Woodstock, a large manufacturing facility, automotive manufacturing.  And such a facility requires a significant amount of energy to build it and certainly, to operate.  


For that reason, due to the large amount of electricity required, it approached us about a way, a method, of providing that.  And it became very clear that a high-voltage transmission line was the only reliable source that would fit the bill.


MR. ENGELBERG:  Now, I understand from the application and the materials that have been filed with it that what Hydro One has applied to the Ontario Energy Board to expropriate is actually an easement for the line --


MR. HOGLUND:  That's correct.


MR. ENGELBERG:  -- and not the fee simple; is that correct, Mr. Hoglund?


MR. HOGLUND:  That's correct.


MR. ENGELBERG:  And could you tell us, please, why the interest in land that Hydro One requires is an easement, and why Hydro One has made application for only an easement.


MR. HOGLUND:  It's Hydro's practice to request the minimum property rights required for a facility such as this, and to build and operate and maintain a high-voltage transmission line.  The minimum requirements are a limited-interest easement.  There's no requirement to have the right-of-way properties, in fee simple.  A limited-right easement is sufficient for the purposes.  


MR. ENGELBERG:  I have no further questions of Mr. Hoglund.


MS. SPOEL:  Ms. Newland, as your client is, I believe, of the same interest in this matter as Hydro One, I wonder, do you propose to ask any questions of Mr. Hoglund?


MS. NEWLAND:  No, Madam Chair, I do not.  


MS. SPOEL:  That's fine, then.


MS. NEWLAND:  Not at this time, unless -- I had thought I would follow Mr. MacDougall, but, no, I have no questions.


MS. SPOEL:  Right.  Then, Mr. MacDougall, I think 

it's --


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Well, I just want to understand about my friend's... she's, I gather, in support of the application?  Is that correct?




MS. NEWLAND:  Yes.   


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Yes.  So she would only have an opportunity now to ask questions, not after I finish my cross-examination?


MS. NEWLAND:  That's correct.  That's correct.  I have no intention of cross-examining Mr. Hoglund.


MS. SPOEL:  Thank you, Ms. Newland. 


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Thank you.


CROSS-EXAMINATION BY MR. MacDOUGALL:

MR. MacDOUGALL:  Mr. Hoglund, where do you reside?


MR. HOGLUND:  Toronto. 


MR. MacDOUGALL:  What part of Toronto?


MR. HOGLUND:  Etobicoke.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  You've never been subject to an expropriation, have you?


MR. HOGLUND:  No, I haven't.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Thank you.  And when did your involvement in this matter commence?


MR. HOGLUND:  Which matter specifically is...


MR. MacDOUGALL:  The proposed expropriation.


MR. HOGLUND:  Well, I've been involved in the project for over a year.  The expropriation hasn't gone on that long, but the expropriation process started, what, late last year, I believe it was.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  So you came to the matter in, what, December of 2006?


MR. HOGLUND:  I came to the expropriation matter probably a little bit before that.  It was being discussed -- the application was submitted, I believe, in December.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Now, J.1 is the exhibit that has been filed in support of the application, and your evidence was you agree with it.  Do I have that right?


MR. HOGLUND:  Yes.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Okay.  Who prepared J.1?


MR. HOGLUND:  Well, various people, I guess, prepared it.  The application would have been prepared by one individual.  There's -- some of the supporting information was prepared by other folks.  Do you want specific names?


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Well, were you part of the preparation?


MR. HOGLUND:  I did not prepare ‑‑ no, I did not write any portions of the document.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Okay.  So do I have your evidence that somebody else did it and you have come to tell us that you agree with it?  Your evidence isn't any more than that; is that correct?


MR. HOGLUND:  That's correct.  Other people wrote it.  I'm agreeing with it.


MR. ENGELBERG:  I would also add, Mr. MacDougall, that Mr. Hoglund is here as a witness in his capacity as someone in charge of these projects for Hydro One and that his answers bind the corporation.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  No, I appreciate that, Mr. Engelberg.  My question is:  Are we going to hear from any of the authors of the report?


MR. ENGELBERG:  Well, the application form was prepared by a solicitor, and the exhibits include matters such as maps and the environmental assessment report that came out of the environmental assessment process.  


So with those two items as examples, I would say that the words that were written on the page are not going to be quoted today at this hearing by any of the people who actually put those words on paper.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Or proven in the usual manner?


MS. SPOEL:  Well, Mr. MacDougall, I think that ‑‑ I know you haven't had a great deal of experience before a tribunal.  However, it is our practice that prefiled evidence that has been adopted by a witness on behalf of an applicant is part of the record for the purposes of our proceedings, and, as we are permitted under the Statutory Powers Procedure Act to admit things that might otherwise be considered to be hearsay if you were in a court of law, it is not our practice to require the individual ‑‑ in fact, we never do require the individual authors of reports.


The application is taken as it stands, on behalf of the corporate applicant, provided that a witness has appeared to adopt it on behalf of the corporation.  And this witness has been sworn.


That is our practice in these sorts of proceedings, and others.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Yes.  I understand that, Madam Chair, and then that will be a matter of argument as to the subject of the weight that can be given to such evidence.


MS. SPOEL:  If you wish, yes.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Thank you.


Mr. Hoglund, when were you requested to come and give evidence?


MR. HOGLUND:  Three weeks ago, a month ago.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  And by whom was that request made?


MR. HOGLUND:  It was made by -- by Mr. Engelberg, I believe.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Okay.  And, sir, have you ever given evidence in expropriation proceedings before?


MR. HOGLUND:  Yes.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Which one?


MR. HOGLUND:  One involving a series of lines in ‑‑ like, extra high‑voltage lines in southwestern Ontario, lines coming from the Bruce Power plant on down to various locations.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  And I understand, sir, that there's presently another application to, I'll call it, twin that line.  Are you involved in that?


MR. HOGLUND:  No, I'm not.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  And, Mr. Hoglund, that was a ‑‑ that's what I'll call a public line that runs from the Bruce down Milton and London and wherever.  Would you agree with that?


MR. HOGLUND:  Sorry, would you repeat that?


MR. MacDOUGALL:  That is a public line that comes out of the Bruce down to Milton on one side and London on the other, or Lambton?


MR. ENGELBERG:  Mr. MacDougall, could you perhaps say what you mean by "a public line"?  I'm not familiar with that term.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Okay.  That was a line that was established to get the power from the Bruce, out of the Bruce, down to Milton or to Lambton; is that correct?


MR. HOGLUND:  Well, no, not exactly.  The proceeding I was involved in did not involve a line from Bruce to Milton. It went in other directions.  I can ‑‑ but it didn't go to Milton.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  All right.  Let me ask the question another way.  Have you ever been involved before in an expropriation for the implementation of a line for a private facility?


MR. HOGLUND:  No, I haven't.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Thank you.  Now, as I understand, this whole process had its genesis in a request from Toyota?


MR. HOGLUND:  Correct.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Can I see that request, please?


MR. HOGLUND:  I don't have the request with me, no.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Will you undertake to produce it, Mr. Engelberg?


MR. ENGELBERG:  No, we will not.  I don't understand the relevance of that.  It has been the subject matter of the application filed that such a request was received.  Toyota has intervened and supports that, and the witness has sworn that Toyota did request such service.  And I would submit that that matter is not an issue in this proceeding. 


That's why we're here, because Toyota requested the service, and Hydro One is now exercising what it needs to do under its obligation to provide that service. 


MS. NEWLAND:  Could I just make a comment, Madam Chair?


MS. SPOEL:  Yes.


MS. NEWLAND:  I would also add to Mr. Engelberg's remarks by stating that the request culminated in the cost recovery agreement that has been filed in this proceeding, so that was the culmination of the request and that's the document that pertains to the matter at issue.


MS. SPOEL:  Mr. MacDougall, I'm not sure where you intend to go with the original request.  As Ms. Newland has pointed out, there is a signed agreement which has been filed, which can be taken for the fact that there is in fact an agreement between the two to supply the power.  


I'm not sure what the ‑‑ what purpose you intend to use it.  There's evidence that a request was made.  It might have been by telephone, for all we know.  I'm not sure what relevance it has to these proceedings.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Well, my answer is twofold, Madam Chair.  First of all, it would be my submission, since this is the genesis of an application to expropriate people's lands, that they would be entitled to see it.  It's fundamental to the whole process that it starts with a request.


Now, my second -- my second position is, if you will, I would like to see the request and find out what -- just what was requested, because I'd like to ascertain whether it was a request for ‑ and I'll just take an example ‑ enough power to build 200 cars, enough power to build 400 cars or 600 cars, and whether there was any negotiations in respect to the number of cars in whether or not lands had to be expropriated.


MR. ENGELBERG:  Madam Chair, in reply to my friend's submissions, the number of cars that Toyota intends to build at the plant are not relevant.  What is relevant, and we've seen that from copies of the legislation and the section of Hydro One's licence, is that a request was made and that Hydro One is obliged to provide power to the plant.


The agreement has also been filed, as has been pointed out by Ms. Newland.  The actual amount of load required by the plant is one of the pieces of the agreement that the Board has ruled is confidential, so that part will not be produced.


And whether negotiations were involved in reaching agreement on the connection cost recovery agreement would be also, in my submission, irrelevant.  We have a signed agreement that has been filed with the Board.  It can be presumed that there was give-and-take in reaching the agreement, but in any event, whether that is the case or not, agreement was reached, has been filed, and the service has been requested.  And I would submit that there would be no point in going further behind the signed agreement.


MS. SPOEL:  Mr. MacDougall, I'm not going to require Mr. Engelberg to produce the request for service.  There is a signed agreement which is evidence of the fact that Toyota has requested the service, as they've entered into an agreement agreeing to pay many of the costs involved.


It is not part of our mandate to determine how many cars they plan to build; that's a private matter for Toyota.  And for the purposes of this proceeding, one can presume that they are requesting the amount of power that they feel they will require now or in the future to operate that plant.  And I'm not going to have this proceeding go into the negotiations or what Toyota's plans are in respect of their specific plans for the plant.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  I understand your ruling, Madam Chair, and that's notwithstanding that people's lands are to be expropriated.


MS. SPOEL:  Yes.  We're here because there is an application to expropriate an easement over people's lands for the purpose of construction of this transmission line.  We're fully aware that that is why we are here.


MS. CAMPBELL:  If I might for a split second.  It struck me, as we were talking about the agreement, as those who are involved with this proceeding know, the Board made a ruling concerning the request for a complete withholding of the agreement as a confidential document.  A redacted copy was provided by Hydro One by courier to all parties on June 11th, 2007.


It does not, in fact, form part of the application.  So I would suggest that we might make it J.2 to this proceeding so that if anybody does wish to refer to the agreement, it now has a number, because it was not part and parcel of the application and prefiled evidence.


MS. SPOEL:  Thank you, Ms. Campbell.

EXHIBIT NO. J.2:  CONNECTION AND COST RECOVERY AGREEMENT BETWEEN TOYOTA MOTOR MANUFACTURING CANADA AND HYDRO ONE NETWORKS INC.

MR. MacDOUGALL:  Mr. Hoglund, would you agree with me, sir, speaking for Ontario Hydro, that the expropriation of property is one of the ultimate exercises of governmental authority?


MR. ENGELBERG:  If I just might say, he is here on behalf of Hydro One Networks Inc.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Sorry.  Okay.  I'll ask the question again.


Would you agree, sir, on behalf of Hydro One Networks, that the expropriation of property is one of the ultimate exercises of governmental authority?


MR. ENGELBERG:  I would object to that.  I don't think that Mr. Hoglund is a legal expert who would be able to give an opinion as to what that significance is in law.  It's a matter for legal argument.


MS. SPOEL:  Yes, I don't think the relative exercise of governmental authority is really a matter that Mr. Hoglund is probably qualified to testify to.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Well, I'll ask all the questions and we'll see where we go.


Would you agree, sir, that to take all or part of an individual's property constitutes a severe loss and a very substantial interference with the citizen's private property rights?


MR. ENGELBERG:  I would make the same objection that I made to the earlier question, other than insofar as it talks about severe loss.  Mr. Hoglund may answer the question regarding, perhaps, the difference between taking a fee simple and an easement, something with which he is familiar.


MS. SPOEL:  Mr. MacDougall, I don't think that it's going to be a profitable use of time to ask Mr. Hoglund questions about his views about the impact of the expropriation.  If you wish to put those questions to your clients, that would be fine, but in terms of the exercise of governmental authority that's permitted by the legislation and its impact on individuals is not something, I believe, that Mr. Hoglund is qualified to comment on.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Well, Madam Chair --


MS. SPOEL:  And it is, as Mr. Engelberg says, more appropriately a matter for argument.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Yes.  I don't want to argue, but this is the only bite I'm going to get at the apple.  This is the only person I'm going to hear from, Hydro.  And what I'm trying to get at with these questions is whether or not Hydro adopts the criteria, in respect to expropriations, that's been set by the Supreme Court of Canada.


MS. SPOEL:  You might ask if they have a policy.  I mean, I think you can approach it perhaps in a different way than asking Mr. Hoglund his views about the exercise of governmental authority, and approach him as to what is policy at Hydro One about how they undertake expropriations and how they -- I think that's fair enough.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  I was trying to refine it a bit.


What is the policy, sir?


MR. HOGLUND:  The policy... Could you maybe rephrase the question or...


MR. MacDOUGALL:  What is the policy of Hydro One or whatever it's called, in respect to expropriation of private interests?


MR. HOGLUND:  Our policy is to expropriate the minimum rights that are required for whatever the undertaking is, and, as in this case, where the minimum rights that are required are an easement, a limited-interest easement, as opposed to a total fee simple of the right of way that is required for the transmission line.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  And do I take it, sir, that is set out in a policy?


MR. HOGLUND:  I believe it is, yes.  I don't have it here.  I don't have it in front of me.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Thank you.  Well, would you get it, please?  I want to see the policy.


MR. ENGELBERG:  We can give an undertaking to provide a copy of the written policy if indeed there is one.


MS. SPOEL:  Thank you, Mr. Engelberg.


MS. CAMPBELL:  And that will form an undertaking, and at the Board, undertakings take the letter K.  So this is K.1.  The undertaking is to provide a copy of the Hydro One policy with regard to expropriation.

UNDERTAKING NO. K.1:  TO PROVIDE A COPY OF HYDRO ONE  POLICY WITH REGARD TO EXPROPRIATION

MR. MacDOUGALL:  Would you agree with me, sir, that the power of expropriation used by a public body, should be used sparingly and with concern for the rights of individual owners?


MR. ENGELBERG:  Madam Chair, I'll make the same objection I did earlier.  I don't think it's within Mr. Hoglund's bailiwick to give an opinion on a legal matter like that.


MS. SPOEL:  I think, Mr. MacDougall, that it would be appropriate to, in terms of the position of Hydro One, to await -- such answers as you might find will presumably be contained in the written policy that Mr. Engelberg is able to produce.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Now, as I understand it, we had made the agreement J.2; is that correct, Ms. Campbell?


MS. CAMPBELL:  Yes, we did.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Thank you.  And if I look at page 2 

-- do you have that in front of you, sir?


MR. HOGLUND:  Yes, I do.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  "Toyota Manufacturing Canada has requested and Hydro One Networks has agreed to design/build, et cetera."


And do I take that Hydro or you, on behalf of Hydro, are refusing to produce the request?


MR. ENGELBERG:  That's correct.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Okay.  When was the request made, sir?


MR. HOGLUND:  The request for the agreement.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  The request ‑‑


MR. HOGLUND:  Or a copy of the agreement.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Yes, has requested and Hydro One has agreed to design.  When was the request made?


MR. HOGLUND:  The request to provide facilities, is that what you're referring to?  Okay, I can't tell you exactly, but there has been ‑‑ there was discussions going on for quite some time with them, over a year ago, but I don't know the precise time.  I can't give you a particular date.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Okay.  Mr. Engelberg, will you undertake to provide me with the specific time?


MR. ENGELBERG:  No, I will not, Mr. MacDougall.  What's relevant here is that a request was made and that it you culminated in an agreement, and the agreement is before the tribunal.


MS. SPOEL:  Well, I think, Mr. Engelberg, it's not unreasonable for Mr. -- to provide the date upon which the process started.


MR. ENGELBERG:  All right.


MS. SPOEL:  If you would do that?


MR. MacDOUGALL:  And ‑‑


MR. ENGELBERG:  Excuse me a minute, Mr. MacDougall.  Do you perhaps know, without having to give an undertaking, Mr. Hoglund, how long before the connection and cost recovery agreement was signed that Toyota first contacted Hydro One to request a transmission line be built to their plant?


MR. HOGLUND:  Well, discussions started with them, to my knowledge, in the summer of 2005.  I can't give you a precise date.


MS. SPOEL:  I'm sorry, Mr. MacDougall, will the summer of 2005 suffice for your purposes?


MR. MacDOUGALL:  For now.  I'll see where it takes us.


Now, Mr. Hoglund, in the summer of 2005, what was the situation with Toyota at Woodstock?


MR. ENGELBERG:  Could you perhaps refine that question a bit, Mr. MacDougall?  What do you mean when you say "what was the situation with Toyota"?


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Yes.  Had they acquired the lands on which they intended to build the plant?


MR. HOGLUND:  I don't know.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Would you undertake to find that out, Mr. Engelberg?


MR. ENGELBERG:  No, we will not.


MS. SPOEL:  No, I don't think, Mr. MacDougall, that whether Toyota had yet acquired the lands is relevant at this point.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Well, Madam Chair, I'll try once more.  I appreciate that I haven't been too successful, but what I'm trying to focus on is whether or not Toyota acquired the land, and then came to Hydro and said, Hydro, give us service; or whether, as I submit or will submit they should have done, did they talk both as to the acquisition of the land and as to the supply of power at the same time.


MS. SPOEL:  Well, Mr. MacDougall, I'm going to suggest that it's not ‑‑ that it doesn't matter, and I'm going to rule that it doesn't matter, because under the Electricity Act and the licence, Hydro One is obliged to provide service regardless of the order in which Toyota chooses to undertake its building.


That might not be a great comfort for your client -- clients, but it is what the legislation and the licence requires.


So whether Toyota came with the land as a fait accompli or whether the availability of power was part of the decision‑making process is not relevant, because once they've decided to build a facility, they are entitled to be supplied with power in one way, shape or form, and it is not a matter that is required to be part of their decision‑making process as a private ‑‑ or even if it was a public project, either one.


Hydro One is required to serve them if they ask for the service.  And I don't think we have the jurisdiction at this hearing to go behind Toyota's timing and their decision‑making process, and I will not allow questions along those lines.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Now, Mr. Hoglund, you agree, sir, that this Board ordered the production of what I'll call the foundation document to this application, J.2?


MR. HOGLUND:  Foundation document?


MR. ENGELBERG:  The Board did order production of a redacted version of the connection and cost recovery agreement.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Is that correct?


MR. ENGELBERG:  Well, I answered the question as I understood it, Mr. MacDougall.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Did you adopt the answer of your counsel?


MR. HOGLUND:  Yes.  Yes.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Thank you.  And that document was forwarded to our offices on June the 14th.  Do you agree with that?


MR. ENGELBERG:  Mr. Hoglund would not be in possession of that knowledge.  That date sounds about right to me.  I'm the one who produced the document, filed it with the Board and asked that it be sent to other parties and intervenors.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Okay.  And do you agree, sir, that it was necessary for both Hydro One and Toyota to review the agreement to ensure proper redaction?


MR. ENGELBERG:  In my submission, Madam Chair, that's not a question to be put to Mr. Hoglund.  I'd be glad to answer that if it's ‑‑ if the question is deemed to be relevant.


MS. SPOEL:  Mr. MacDougall, if this line of questioning is dealing with the timing, I think the receipt of the information and the prehearing production of documents, I think those are more appropriate questions or matters to raise to me or to us or to counsel.  It's not really a matter for this witness, because he was not part of that discussion and that process.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Well, are we going to hear from Mrs. Frank?


MR. ENGELBERG:  No, we will not.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  And as I understand, the redaction was to take place because of Toyota's confidential information; is that correct?


MR. ENGELBERG:  Mr. MacDougall, I'm not clear to whom you are addressing that question.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Well, I'm addressing it to the only witness that I understand is going to be here.


MR. ENGELBERG:  Well, the Board's order on confidentiality, I would submit, speaks for itself on production of the document.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Okay.  All right.  Then, just so I get it all on the record, Madam Chair, where was the obligation to maintain confidentiality?  Where is that found?


MS. SPOEL:  Mr. MacDougall, to whom are you addressing this question?


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Well, I'm addressing it to the witness, Madam Chair, because I received a letter which says ‑‑ I'll read it and I'll file it, if you wish:

"As it was Toyota's confidential information for which Hydro One was obligated to seek protection, Hydro One gave Toyota the opportunity to do the initial review and redaction."  


And I want to know where the obligation was.  I'll show you the letter, Madam Chair.


MS. SPOEL:  No, I believe I have a copy of it.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Yes, I think the letter that Mr. MacDougall is making reference to is a letter dated June 14th, 2007.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  It is.


MS. CAMPBELL:  And it is a letter to Mr. MacDougall, and it is signed by Susan Frank, who I believe is the vice‑president and chief regulatory officer, regulatory affairs, of Hydro One Networks Inc.


Do you wish to read that into the record, Mr. MacDougall?


MR. MacDOUGALL:  I just want to find out where the requirement for confidentiality is.


MR. ENGELBERG:  Madam Chair, in Hydro One's --


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Because I can't find it.


MR. ENGELBERG:  Madam Chair, in Hydro One's submission, the matter of confidentiality has been dealt with amply by the Board in coming to the order that the Board made.  Objections were raised as to confidentiality prior to that date, and the Board made an order that the agreement be produced with certain items redacted from it.  All the matters to which my friend is referring to either have been or should have been addressed in submissions prior to the Board's making that order.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Mr. MacDougall, just to make sure that the record is clear, I think, so that those who wish to read this at a later date can understand it, I'm going to read the paragraph in, sir, so it is clear what your reference is to.  The middle paragraph, which I think is at the heart of Mr. MacDougall's question, reads:

"To respond to the Board's Procedural Order to which you refer, it was necessary for both Hydro One and Toyota to review the agreement to ensure proper redaction.  As it was Toyota's confidential information for which Hydro One was obligated to seek protection, Hydro One gave Toyota the opportunity to do the initial review and redaction."


If I understand your question, sir, and I'm just trying to follow this.  Your question is, as it was Toyota's confidential information for which Hydro One was obligated to seek "protection," and that's the heart of it, you are asking what confidential information, and why was Hydro One obligated to seek this?


MR. MacDOUGALL:  No, I'm just asking the second question.  Where was the obligation.


MS. SPOEL:  Perhaps I can help you, Mr. MacDougall.  Mr. Rupert has pointed out to me that it arises in section 14 of Hydro One's licence, which is issued by the Ontario Energy Board, which provides that Hydro One Networks Inc. is not to provide confidential customer information, which is what's included in this document.  Mr. Rupert and I reviewed the agreement and determined what portions should be redacted.  We have done that procedure as part of the Board's process dealing with confidential information, and we did it in accordance with the conditions of the licence, which are standard conditions in all the Board's licences.


That's where the obligation arises, an obligation of the Board that distributors and transmitters are not to make customer information public.


MS. NEWLAND:  Madam Chair, if I could --


MS. SPOEL:  I think having already made a decision on this and ruling on this matter, this is not an area that we intend to revisit today.


MS. NEWLAND:  Madam Chair, I was just going to add that section 4.7 of the Transmission System Code also reinforces that obligation of confidentiality with respect to customer information.


MS. SPOEL:  Thank you, Ms. Newland.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Mr. Hoglund, will you agree with me that once this redaction or suppression process started, as I call it --


MS. SPOEL:  Mr. MacDougall, I'm sorry.  This is a ruling by the Board --


MR. MacDOUGALL:  No, I appreciate that.


MS. SPOEL:  It is a legislative and a licence requirement, and I don't think it's appropriate to refer to it as "suppression."  I'd appreciate your not doing so.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Thank you.  I understand your admonishment, Madam Chair.


In any event, if we start at page 6 -- do you have that in front of you, sir?


MR. ENGELBERG:  Are you referring to page 6 of Schedule A, perhaps, Mr. MacDougall?


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Yes.


MR. HOGLUND:  Yes, I have that.


MR. RUPERT:   Just to be clear, is this the one that has in the middle of the page a heading called "Other relevant considerations."  Have I got that right, sir?


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Yes.


MR. HOGLUND:  Yes, I have it.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Will you agree with me, sir, that all financial information from there forward to page 4 of Schedule B, all financial information has been blacked out?


MR. HOGLUND:  It appears to be, yes.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  All right.  Now, what I'd like to know, sir, was, since we are told in the letter of June the 14th that Toyota was going to be given a chance to black some out, and then I take it Hydro was going to have an opportunity to black some out, which was blacked out by Toyota and which was blacked out by Hydro?


MR. HOGLUND:  I don't know.


MS. SPOEL:  Mr. MacDougall, I'm not going to allow that question.  This was reviewed by the Board before it was approved to be released.  And we are satisfied that the appropriate information was blacked out; no more and no less.  Who blacked it out and the order is absolutely irrelevant.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  And, sir, is it the position of Hydro One Inc. that this Board can determine what is in the public interest without potential expropriated landowners having any financial information?  Is that the position of Hydro One?


MR. ENGELBERG:  Mr. Hoglund is not in a position to answer that.  That's a legal question for argument.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Let's then just sum it up.  It is the position of Hydro One that no financial information will be made available to those whose lands are to be expropriated?


MR. ENGELBERG:  That is not the position of Hydro One.  The position of Hydro One is that certain information contained in its agreements with customers is not information which it is in a position to make public.  But that is a far lower claim than to say that no financial information is to be made public.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Well, then, sir, perhaps you will help me.  What financial information is being made available?


MR. ENGELBERG:  Hydro One is not aware of any financial information that has been requested in any of the pre-hearing procedures by any of the other parties or intervenors.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Now, sir, will you go to -- I'll come back to it later.



When the negotiations commenced between Toyota and Hydro One Inc., was there any consideration given to alternative methods of supply?


MR. HOGLUND:  Yes.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  And what were they, sir?


MR. HOGLUND:  Well, there was a multitude of things that were looked at, possible other ways of supplying, involving low‑voltage and high‑voltage combination of facilities.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Right.


MR. HOGLUND:  And their feasibility and their merits and alternatives and disadvantages, stuff like that, were discussed and so forth.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Okay.  Can I see those, please, sir?


MR. HOGLUND:  I don't have that information.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Can I have an undertaking to produce those, please?


MR. ENGELBERG:  No, we will not undertake to produce that information.  First of all, I would submit that that isn't relevant.  Secondly, there were ample proceedings, procedures, prior to this hearing today.  


There were interrogatories, and this information has never been requested.  And as far as route goes, in the event that part of your question may go to the issue of route, the matter of route is not within the scope of this proceeding. 


But the first part of what I said goes to the issue of the size of the service and whether it would be low voltage or high voltage.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Now, Madam Chair, I have no intention of getting into the route, but I am ‑‑ I do want to explore methods of supplying the power.


MS. SPOEL:  Well, Mr. MacDougall, I think that you can ask some questions concerning it.  I am not, however, at this point prepared to have Hydro One Networks Inc. produce all their information ‑‑ written information from their files about a decision‑making process that pre‑dated the environmental assessment, the class environmental assessment report, which you have already -- which deals with route, I assume, having rejected other alternatives.


You can ask some questions on the area, and then we'll see ‑‑


MR. MacDOUGALL:  See where it goes.


MS. SPOEL:  But you did have an opportunity, if you wished to explore this area, to ask for production of these sort of information in the interrogatory process, in which -- it could have been dealt with appropriately at that time, if there were objections and so on.  


This is a new area, if you will, that has only come up today, but, as I said, if you wish to ask some questions in the area, we'll see where that takes us.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Okay.


MR. ENGELBERG:  Madam Chair, I'd also like to add to my earlier submissions that this is not an application ‑‑ as my friend is aware, this is not an application under section 92 of the Ontario Energy Board Act for leave to construct facilities, in which case perhaps it might be appropriate to ask some of these questions.  


This is an application for expropriation under section 99.


MS. SPOEL:  Thank you, Mr. Engelberg.  However, I still think that you can ask some questions without, at the moment, getting into productions of large volumes.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Okay.


MS. SPOEL:  Of documents.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Mr. Hoglund, are you aware, sir, of a process by which methane gas is created from animal waste?


MR. HOGLUND:  Yes.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Yes.  And are you aware, sir, of agreements that have been entered into between Hydro and large farm operators to create this kind of a facility?


MR. HOGLUND:  Yes.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  And are you aware, sir, of a facility on the 12th Concession of Middlesex Centre, owned by Stanton Brothers, in which such an agreement and a facility arising out of there is in the process of construction?


MR. HOGLUND:  I have some knowledge of that, of that situation, yes.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Yes.


MR. ENGELBERG:  Madam Chair, I'd like to step in here for just a minute.  I don't object in principle to this line of questioning.  However, given what's been pointed out by Mr. Rupert as to the contents of Hydro One's licence, Mr. Hoglund is going to have to be careful not to give out any confidential information of which he is aware that, because of the terms of Hydro One's licence, it's forbidden to disclose.


MS. SPOEL:  Thank you, Mr. Engelberg.  I'm sure that Mr. Hoglund will be careful and you will advise him if you think he's stepping out of line from that point of view.  Mr. MacDougall?


MR. MacDOUGALL:  I had no intentions to ask about it, Madam Chair.


Have you seen the facility of Mr. Stanton's on the 12th Concession?


MR. HOGLUND:  No, I haven't.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Okay.  Sir, would you agree with me that in terms of agriculture in Ontario, this is a very actively farmed area?  There's a lot of intensive agriculture in this area?


MR. HOGLUND:  In which area?


MR. MacDOUGALL:  In the area surrounding here, Oxford, Middlesex, Perth.


MR. HOGLUND:  Yes.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Would you agree with that?


MR. HOGLUND:  Yes.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Yes.  And would you agree with me, sir, that the disposal of animal waste is a major problem in this area?


MR. HOGLUND:  I don't really have any expertise in that particular area, but it seems sensible, yes.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Okay.  And would you agree with me, sir, that the establishment of, I think it's called an anaerobic -- I can't think of the second word.


MR. RUPERT:  Digester.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Digester, sorry.  Thank you, sir.  Would you agree with me, sir, that that alleviates some of the difficulties with the disposal of animal waste?


MR. HOGLUND:  Yes, it would.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Now, sir, was any consideration given by Ontario Hydro to establishing a major facility to supply -- an anaerobic facility to supply the Toyota plant?


MR. ENGELBERG:  Are you referring to the present‑day Hydro One, Mr. MacDougall?


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Yes.


MR. HOGLUND:  No.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  And why was that, sir?


MR. HOGLUND:  It never came up, quite frankly.  Such a facility would be -- to provide the size of an automotive manufacturing plant like Toyota, would be huge.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Sir, but my question is:  Did anybody ever look into it?


MR. HOGLUND:  Not in the context of supplying -- specifically supplying Toyota.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  And would you agree with me, sir, that Hydro One could do that?


MR. HOGLUND:  Yes, but it wouldn't be a complete solution.  I mean, it would be -- it would be a ‑‑ the size would be humongous, to start with.  And if you had such a facility, you would -- in order to have the level of reliability required for a facility like Toyota, you would need backup, you know, means of providing generation and a whole variety of things, which would lead you back to a transmission solution.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Yes, but would you agree with me, sir, just maintaining with the digester, the anaerobic digester --


MR. HOGLUND:  All right.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  -- that if it was placed on the Toyota property ‑‑ it's about 2,000 acres, isn't it, the Toyota property?


MR. HOGLUND:  I don't think it's that large.  A thousand acres, I believe.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Ms. Newland, how large is it?  It's 2,000.


MS. SPOEL:  Well, Mr. MacDougall, before we go too far in this, I don't think that Hydro One Network's licence allows it to generate electricity, so if there were to be a solution, it would have to be built by someone else.  So it's not a solution in the control of Hydro One Networks, quite apart from these other merits or otherwise.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  But you've agreed with me, sir, that that is something that could have been looked into in this instance?  


MR. HOGLUND:  Yeah, you could look into it, but it's the scale of the facility.  It just would not be something that would be, in my view, a practical solution, in and of itself.  It would not be a stand-alone ‑‑ it would not be a reasonable stand‑alone supply of electricity for a facility like Toyota, in my opinion.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  I have heard the answer and ‑‑ but you agree with me that nobody has made the investigation?


MR. HOGLUND:  No.


MS. NEWLAND:  Madam Chair, I would just add that what Toyota may or may not have done in terms of investigating sources of supply of the commodity versus how that commodity would be delivered to its plant, we don't know.  There's nothing on the record about that.  But that's got nothing to do with Hydro One, in my submission.


MS. SPOEL:  Thank you, Ms. Newland.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Can I have 15 minutes, please, Madam Chair?


MS. SPOEL:  Certainly.  This would be an appropriate time for a morning break.  We'll return in 15 minutes.


‑‑‑ Recess taken at 10:21 a.m. 


--- On resuming at 10:44 a.m. 


MS. SPOEL:  Please be seated.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Mr. Hoglund, you understand that there were various discussions arising out of the lodging of these proceedings in respect to the acquisition of the lands?


MR. HOGLUND:  Sorry, could you repeat that?


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Yes.  Do you understand, sir, that there were various discussions between the parties arising out of the commencement of these proceedings in respect to the acquisition of the lands?


MR. HOGLUND:  Yes.  Yes.  Okay.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Yes.  And did you understand, sir, that offers were made approximately March the 23rd in respect to the resolution of these matters?


MR. HOGLUND:  Offers were made by -- by whom?


MR. MacDOUGALL:  The Tuns and Mr. Streutker.


MR. HOGLUND:  Yes, I believe there was knowledge of that.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Thank you.


MR. ENGELBERG:  Madam Chair, perhaps -- 


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Would you produce those, please?


MR. ENGELBERG:  -- I want to interject here.  It's my submission, as well as my understanding on behalf of Hydro One, that offers made back and forth between my client and the parties whose easement interests Hydro One has applied to expropriate are not within the scope of this hearing.  I'm not sure where this line of questioning goes and whether it's appropriate for my client to get into offers.  Those are to be determined in another proceeding pursuant to the Ontario Energy Board Act and the Expropriations Act, but not part of the section 99 proceeding.


MS. SPOEL:  Mr. MacDougall, I'm sure that you are, of course, fully aware that this proceeding does not deal with matters of compensation.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Absolutely.


MS. SPOEL:  And so I'm wondering what, other than the compensation aspects of it, what the purpose of introducing evidence about what offers may or may not have been made from one party or the other has in this proceeding.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Sure.  Madam Chair, Mr. Member, my position, when we come to argument - I'll set it out right now - is twofold.


First of all, it will be my submission that Hydro should be directed to go back and address whether an anaerobic digester would be feasible.


MS. SPOEL:  Mm-hm.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Okay.


MS. SPOEL:  Mm-hm.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  And that if Hydro is not prepared to do that, you make an order expropriating the entirety of the Streutker property and the fee in Mr. Tuns' property.


To that end, I tendered what is known under the Expropriations Act as a section 30 agreement.  That, Madam Chair, Mr. Member, provides for the expropriation of the lands, no further proceedings such as this, and the determination of the compensation.


And I respectfully want the letter and the agreements put before you, and then I want to explore why they were never responded to.


MS. SPOEL:  If I might.  Ms. Campbell, can you give the Panel some advice as to whether section 30 agreements under the Expropriations Act apply to expropriations under the Ontario Energy Board Act, because I know that the Expropriations Act does not apply in its entirety to our proceedings.  And I'm not sure whether that section does or not.


MS. CAMPBELL:  I actually brought a copy of the Expropriations Act with me on the off chance that something in it might, in fact, become relevant.


When I look at section 30, what I see is "arbitration where no expropriation," and this is the most recent copy of the Act that I have.


But I don't know whether that's really important, whether you call it a section 30 agreement or you call it something else.


I believe the thrust of what Mr. MacDougall is saying is that, if an offer has been made to Hydro One requesting an expropriation of the entirety of this fee simple owned by Mr. MacDougall's clients, the Streutkers and the Tuns --   am I correct in that, sir?


MR. MacDOUGALL:  The entirety of the Streutker property, which is, I think about 170 acres; the portion of the Tunses property which you require.


MS. CAMPBELL:  So, at first blush, I don't know whether it really matters whether you call it a section 30 offer or whether you call it something else.


The essence or the important part, I think, of the issue is that a request or an offer to Hydro One to take the whole of the properties that are at issue before this Board has been made, and Mr. MacDougall's position is that, rather than order a permanent easement, the Board should in turn order an expropriation of the whole of the fee simple of both of the owners.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  And I go slightly further than that.  It avoids this very proceeding.


MS. SPOEL:  Well, Mr. MacDougall and Mr. Engelberg, I think that under the circumstances the fact that an offer was tendered by Mr. MacDougall's clients is potentially of some relevance, so I am prepared to allow that question to be put and a copy to be produced.  If you have some with you that might speed things up, rather than requiring Hydro One Networks to dig for it.


MR. ENGELBERG:  Madam Chair, perhaps I can shorten that here.  My friend has said at least twice that this proceeding could have been avoided had an agreement been reached.  That's what I understand him to be saying.  


I can advise the Board, as solicitor of record for Hydro One, and if necessary I can ask, or my friend can ask Mr. Hoglund, to state for the record as a witness, there were offers that went back and forth.  No agreement was reached.  No offer was accepted.  Had agreement been reached, I agree with Mr. MacDougall, likely this proceeding would not have been necessary.  But we are here today because no offer made by either party to the other has been accepted.  


And Mr. Hoglund has also stated on the record that Hydro One has made it clear that it has no wish and has not applied for expropriation of an interest greater than an interest to give it easement rights to place the towers and have the line running overhead.  It does not need the fee simple and does not wish to take the fee simple in all of these lands of the parties.


But, in my respectful submission, to go further than this and to produce offers back and forth which did not culminate in an acceptance of offer or an agreement would not be within the purview of this proceeding.


MS. SPOEL:  Mr. MacDougall, what I would suggest is, if you don't mind, that -- in fact, I'm going to rule -- is that you may ask Hydro One Networks Inc.'s witness to confirm that he has received an offer of the nature you described, from your clients, and you may produce it and put it before him.  You may ask him to produce it if you don't have it.  


As to the various negotiations back and forth that may have occurred before or after that offer was made, I'm not sure that that's necessarily relevant.  But if you wish to establish, as a matter of evidence, that your clients made an offer of the nature you described, I think that that is a reasonable thing to do.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  All right.  Okay, and I thank you very much, Madam Chair, and I'll start right at the beginning.


Mr. Hoglund, did Hydro One Inc. ever make an offer to my clients, Mr. Streutker and ‑‑


MS. SPOEL:  No, sorry, Mr. MacDougall.  I said if you wanted to establish that your clients had made an offer of the nature you described.  The back and forth of negotiations about the compensation, and the like, is not within the ‑‑ what they were offered for their easement, for the easement Hydro One was seeking to acquire, is not within the purview of this Board.  That is a matter for the Ontario Municipal Board, if there is a compensation proceeding, as to whether compensation is adequate.


If you wish to establish that your clients made an offer of the nature you describe, which you said was to expropriate the entire property in one case and to acquire fee simple rather than an easement in the other case, and you wish to establish that through this witness, you may do so.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Okay.  Mr. Hoglund, was an offer made by my client, Streutker, for the acquisition of the entirety and by my client Tuns for the acquisition of the fee in his property made to Hydro One?


MR. HOGLUND:  Yes, I believe it was.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  And am I correct, sir, that that would have been made approximately on March the 23rd?


MR. HOGLUND:  Yes.  And I think previously, as well, that a previous time it was offered.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  There was a previous offer?


MR. HOGLUND:  Yes.  I believe in some months earlier than that, there was -- there was a meeting that took place, which I believe you -- you attended.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  No, no, no, no.  But that was before the proceeding ever started, wasn't it?  We are talking about after the proceeding got started, was there an offer made?


MR. HOGLUND:  Okay.  Yes.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Okay.  And sir, would you advise the Board as to what happened to that offer?


MR. HOGLUND:  I don't believe it was accepted.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  And, sir, would you advise the Board as to who dealt with that offer?


MR. HOGLUND:  Within Hydro or --


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Yes.


MR. HOGLUND:  I believe it was Rick Poppe or Rob Thomson or a combination of the two.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Okay.  And, sir, were there memorandums and correspondence exchanged between parties within Hydro as to how that offer was going to be dealt with?


MR. HOGLUND:  I'm not a ‑‑ I don't have ‑‑ I don't know.  I wasn't that close to the negotiations.


MS. SPOEL:  Mr. MacDougall ‑‑


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Just give -- yes, ma'am?


MS. SPOEL:  As I indicated before, if you wish to establish that an offer was made, that's fine.  The offer was not accepted.  We've got that evidence.


I'm not prepared to have Hydro One Networks produce the internal memoranda dealing with how they dealt with the offer, given that the offer was not for what they had initially applied to expropriate.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Okay.  Let me ask this.  

Mr. Hoglund --


MS. SPOEL:  And given that we are not dealing with compensation in this hearing.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  No, I'm not suggesting that we are, Madam Chair.


Mr. Hoglund, in your opinion, sir, should I -- as solicitor for the Tuns and the Streutkers, should I have been advised of what was the response to that offer?


MR. ENGELBERG:  Madam Chair, I'm going to object to that question.  That's not within Mr. Hoglund's area that he can opine on, nor is the answer to it relevant to this proceeding.


MS. SPOEL:  I don't think it's relevant, Mr. MacDougall.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Well, so do I understand it, then ‑‑ let me just get right to it.


Do I understand it, Mr. Hoglund, that some letters are answered and some are ignored?  


MR. ENGELBERG:  I'm going to object to that question on the grounds of relevance.


MS. SPOEL:  Mr. MacDougall, you have established that ‑‑ this is not an inquiry into the internal correspondence-handling practices at Hydro One Networks, and I don't think those are fair questions to be putting to this witness.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Well ‑‑


MS. SPOEL:  If you wish to ask whether or not an answer was sent, you may do that and we can draw our own conclusions, and you may make whatever inferences you wish in argument.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Was -- was there a response to those offers?


MR. HOGLUND:  I'm not aware of one.  I wasn't that close to the negotiations, though.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  And, sir, if there wasn't a response, why wasn't there a response?


MR. HOGLUND:  Again, I wasn't -- I wasn't a party to the specific negotiations, so it would be purely speculative on my part to...


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Mr. Hoglund, do you think there should have been a response to those offers?


MR. ENGELBERG:  I'm going to object to that question, Madam Chair.  That's not up to Mr. Hoglund to give an opinion on how negotiations are conducted.  As I've stated before, in Hydro One's submission, what's relevant to this proceeding is there was a back and forth and that no agreement was reached between the parties.


MS. SPOEL:  Mr. MacDougall, I don't think that that's an appropriate question to be asking this witness, since we don't even have on the record what offer your client made, and the matter of offers and compensation is not a matter for this proceeding.  


So whether an offer was accepted or not, apart from whether -- clearly, had the offer been accepted, we wouldn't be here today.  Beyond that, we're not here to assign any sort of blame for the fact that this proceeding is happening.  


This is a proceeding under statutory provisions in the legislation to deal with the merits of the application to expropriate and not to inquire into the bona fides of the conduct of one party or another.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Okay.  Well, Madam Chair, if you'll just bear with me, I do have a copy of one of the offers, and the other I'll have to locate over the lunch-hour break.


I'll have to get them over ‑‑


MS. SPOEL:  That's fine.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  ‑‑ the lunch-hour break.


MS. SPOEL:  That's fine.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Thank you.  Now, Mr. Hoglund, you understand, sir, that these lands are being acquired under public interest; is that correct?


MR. HOGLUND:  Yes.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  That's the criteria?  Okay.  And, sir, could I have Hydro One's definition of "public interest"?


MR. ENGELBERG:  Madam Chair, in my submission, the definition of "public interest" is a legal issue that's to be dealt with in argument.  


Mr. Hoglund is here and can testify as to the purpose for which the interest in land is being taken, why it was deemed necessary by Hydro One to take this particular kind of interest, the width of the interest that needs to be taken, because of the size of the transmission capability that's needed.  But he's not here to give a layman's opinion on what is or is not in the public interest, which is the test that the Board is supposed to use.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Mm‑hm.


MS. SPOEL:  I agree, Mr. MacDougall.  I will expect that you and Mr. Engelberg, and probably Ms. Newland and Ms. Campbell, as well, will provide submissions to us on what the public interest is in any particular case, and not a witness.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Mr. Hoglund, would you agree with me, sir, that insofar as the interest of Toyota, that we're dealing with a private interest?  


MR. HOGLUND:  Toyota is a private company, yes.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  And, this, sir, would you agree with me, this proposed expropriation is for no other person's or corporate entity's interest than Toyota?  This is for Toyota and only Toyota?


MR. ENGELBERG:  Madam Chair, I must object to the form of that question.  We got into earlier the legal background for the requirement that requests from persons in the community who need power must be responded to favourably by all transmitters and distributors within the province, both because of the legislation and because of the terms of their licence.


If my friend is trying to get at, with this witness, the issue of whether a transmission line to a particular manufacturing facility benefits only the owners of the facility as opposed to the people who work there or the people in the community who benefit from it, that's a different type of argument to make.  But Mr. Hoglund is not in a position, any more than any of the rest of us here today are, to argue whether somehow a transmission line to an expanded factory benefits only the owner of the largest number of shares of that company or whether it benefits the community of Woodstock and the employees at large.


MS. SPOEL:  Well, Mr. MacDougall, if you are trying to ascertain whether this transmission line will serve any other customers than Toyota, I think it's a fair question.  If you are trying to determine who will benefit in broader terms from Toyota being there, I think that's beyond the cope of Mr. Hoglund's testimony.  


But I do think it's fair to inquire whether or not there are any other customers, at present or projected in the future, who might be served from this line.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Are there any other customers, Mr. Hoglund?


MR. HOGLUND:  No.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  So it's for Toyota and Toyota only?


MR. HOGLUND:  Yes.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  And absent the request from Toyota, which we haven't seen, we wouldn't be here.


MR. HOGLUND:  That's fair.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Thank you.  Now, sir, do you have the plans of the line?


MR. HOGLUND:  Yes, they're in the application.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Yes.


MR. HOGLUND:  Yes.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Can you show the Streutkers and the  Tunses where the towers will be?


MR. HOGLUND:  In general terms I can, yes.


MS. CAMPBELL:  And just to make sure that the record is clear, it appears that everybody is pulling out the survey that was done and filed as part of this application, and that is found in a pocket that is at tab 10 of the application.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Mm-hm.


MS. CAMPBELL:  And there is one for the Streutker and   Tuns property.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Mm-hm.


MS. CAMPBELL:  And it says plan 41R-7942 in the upper right-hand corner, and it's dated 2006-12-19.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Right.  Yes, I have that.  Does that show where the towers are?


MR. HOGLUND:  No, it doesn't show the towers.  It shows the size, the dimensions of the taking.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Yes, I understand that.  And that's the way they expropriate.


MR. HOGLUND:  Right.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  You have to identify the land.


I want you to show the Tuns and the Streutkers where the towers would be.


MR. HOGLUND:  I can do that in general terms.  Yes.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  In general terms?


MR. HOGLUND:  Well, I don't have them scaled off in this particular file, but I can tell you that on the Streutker property the proposal involves the installation of four structures.


MS. SPOEL:  Sorry, can you help us?  Which parts on this plan of survey are owned by which landowners?  We have the numbers parts 1 through 9.


Perhaps Mr. Hoglund can just answer the question in terms of, there are nine parts on this plan of survey, and I'm just not sure who owns which parts.  This is the --


MR. HOGLUND:  Yes.


MS. SPOEL:  -- the 7942, the long plan.


MR. HOGLUND:  The Tuns property are associated with parts 7, 8, and 9.


MS. SPOEL:  Thank you.


MR. HOGLUND:  On that side of the road.  There's a Towerline Road, called Towerline Road.  So that's the Tuns' property.  The other side of the road, parts 1, 3, 4, 5, and 2, that's the Streutker property.


MS. SPOEL:  Thank you.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Now, will you take the Board's copy and mark on it where the towers are going to be?


MR. HOGLUND:  All right.  This is just approximate.  I don't have any scale.  This is just to give a conceptual idea of the number of structures and the general space.


MR. ENGELBERG:  Mr. Madam Chair, would it be helpful to you if Mr. Hoglund came up and showed them to the Chair.


MS. SPOEL:  It’s fine.  He can mark them on there, and then as you mark them, perhaps you could just give a general verbal description for the record, for the transcript, to show where they are, and I will look at it afterwards.  Then the applicants, or the intervenors, I'm sorry, can actually have a look at what you're doing as well.


MR. HOGLUND:  All right.  I've marked on the -- should I bring it up here now?


MS. SPOEL:  No, perhaps you can show them first, and then I'll have a look at it.


MR. HOGLUND:  Okay.  Marked on the drawing are four Xs.  There's one located right beside Towerline Road between parts 3 and 5.  It's sort of part-way between.  So there's one structure located in that location.  And then there are three other ones on the property spread pretty much equally across the property, as shown with the other three Xs.


This one is proposed to be a four-legged structure because of the stresses required, sort of the end of the line.


MS. SPOEL:  Sorry, Mr. Hoglund, when you say "this one" is proposed to be a four-legged structure, which one of the four are you referring to?


MR. HOGLUND:  I'm sorry, the one closest to Towerline Road.


MS. SPOEL:  Thank you.


MR. HOGLUND:  Is a four-legged structure because it's required to -- it's the end of the line, basically, where the line comes from the existing line.


The new line comes out.


MS. TUNS:  There is a pole already there.


MR. HOGLUND:  On the outside of the road, yes, on the Tuns' property.


MS. TUNS:  Oh, I'm sorry.


MS. SPOEL:  And, Mr. Hoglund, the other three structures on the Streutker property, what do they look like?  What sort of structures are they, in general terms?


MR. HOGLUND:  They'll be steel poles, single steel poles with a single foundation.


MS. SPOEL:  Thank you.


MS. CAMPBELL:  And can I just ask, Mr. Hoglund, since it's hard for me to keep quiet, I see two photographs in the application.  One is a lattice-type transmission tower and the other is the steel pole structure; am I correct?  And what I'm talking about is found at the very beginning of tab 2.


MR. HOGLUND:  Yes.


MS. CAMPBELL:  And it's page 1-8.  It's figure 1.6 is the lattice type transmission tower.  Is that the four-legged structure that you were discussing?


MR. HOGLUND:  Yes, that's correct.


MS. CAMPBELL:  All right.  And if I turn to page 1-6, which is immediately before that, again, in the same location, it's the steel pole structure, and that is the structure that is in the three other parts that you've marked on that --


MR. HOGLUND:  Yes.


MS. CAMPBELL:  -- on the --


MR. HOGLUND:  Yes.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Thank you.


MR. HOGLUND:  On the Tuns' property there is an existing tower located as part of part 7, located in part 7.  And there will be three, I believe it is, smaller structures located to the -- is that west?  To the west within part 8.


MR. TUNS:  So there are three towers going on.


MR. HOGLUND:  Three smaller ones, yes.  They're not shown in the –-


MR. TUNS:  Somebody told me that they were 85 feet.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Are there three marked on here?


MR. HOGLUND:  On the Tuns' property?  No, I don't believe they are. 


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Put them on, please.


MR. HOGLUND:  I've identified it with three circles within part 8 of ‑‑ on the Tuns property.  And these are single pedestal, single foundation type structures of a different nature, but they're single foundation.


MS. SPOEL:  Thank you.


Thank you, Mr. MacDougall. 


MR. HOGLUND:  I should say from memory, I believe there's only three on the Tuns property.  There may be a fourth, but I believe it's only three.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Now, Mr. Hoglund, you were going to get us the policy of Hydro One Inc. in respect to whether there would be an acquisition of a fee or just an easement; is that correct?


MR. ENGELBERG:  We've given that undertaking.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Okay.  So, Madam Chair, that particular document is critical to the position that I have put to the Board earlier; namely, either go back and look at an alternative, the anaerobic digester, or take the whole thing.


MS. SPOEL:  Right.  I understand that.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  So could we now adjourn and get that document?


MS. SPOEL:  Well, Mr. MacDougall, do you have other areas of cross‑examination that you wish to deal with, with this witness --


MR. MacDOUGALL:  No.


MS. SPOEL:  -- or is this it?


MR. MacDOUGALL:  I think you shut me off on all of them.  I tried all of the ones I though had some relevance to this matter, Madam Chair, and I have not been successful.


MS. SPOEL:  Mr. Engelberg, is it possible to make inquiries and see whether a copy of such a policy, if it exists, can be acquired?  We'll take an early lunch break, perhaps, and ‑‑ is this something that you think that somebody will be able to send a fax, or something, or an e‑mail here?


MR. ENGELBERG:  We already requested at the morning break that it be sent, if there is such a policy.  We expect to have it over the lunch hour, if there is one.  Since my friend says he has no further issues other than that, perhaps I could use five minutes of the Board's time now just to ask one or two questions in redirect to try to use the time wisely, or would you prefer I do that at the end?


MS. SPOEL:  I think I would prefer you leave it to the end, because Ms. Campbell may have some questions, as well, and you should probably follow her in case she raises issues that you wish to respond to.


I suggest we take a break now, and perhaps people can use the break as a lunch break, as well, given the time, and perhaps we can return at quarter to 1:00.  Do you think you would have it in enough time that Mr. MacDougall can see it in enough time to look it over before -- if we resume at quarter to 1:00?


MR. ENGELBERG:  I would think, yes.


MS. SPOEL:  Is that acceptable to you, Mr. MacDougall?


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Yes, as long as we understand that I can have further cross‑examination on the document.


MS. SPOEL:  Of course.  That's the purpose.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Thank you.


MS. SPOEL:  Yes.  Otherwise, we would proceed on with questions of Ms. Campbell, but that's the whole point of having the break.  


Then we will adjourn until a quarter to 1:00.


‑‑‑ Luncheon recess taken at 11:19 a.m.


--- On resuming at 12:45 p.m. 


MR. ENGELBERG:  Madam Chair and Mr. Member, over the lunch hour we got the results of our request to Hydro One's head office concerning the expropriation policy, and what we learned is this.


There is an old policy remaining from Ontario Hydro that has never been officially adopted by Hydro One.  An undertaking was made within the corporation to draft a policy for expropriation for Hydro One.  That policy has not yet been approved.  


What you see in front of you is a draft that has not received corporate approval.  It is in draft stage.  It contains a number of errors, for example, spelling errors throughout.  For example, under "Definitions," it refers to the Expropriation Act instead of the Ontario Energy Board Act.  But other than, that I'm told that this policy, once changes are made to it, will be submitted to the executive committee, and I would guess that it's likely to be approved but it is not yet a policy.


MS. SPOEL:  Thank you.  Mr. MacDougall.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Perhaps before we go ahead, could we have this marked as an exhibit?


MS. SPOEL:  Sorry.


MS. CAMPBELL:  And so undertaking K.1 has, in fact, been answered by a two-page document that's titled:  "Draft policy in process" and has handwriting across the top indicating it is an answer to an undertaking.  It will become Exhibit J.3.

EXHIBIT NO. J.3:  TWO-PAGE DOCUMENT ENTITLED "DRAFT POLICY IN PROCESS"


MS. SPOEL:  Mr. MacDougall.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Thank you.  First of all, Madam Chair, Mr. Hoglund, I'm showing you a document entitled  "Agreement dated the 22nd day of March, 2007, between Hydro One Networks Inc. and Andrew Streutker et al."  Do you understand that was the document that was submitted to Mr. Finn by letter dated March 23rd?


MR. HOGLUND:  I don't know, quite frankly.  It looks like an agreement, but I've had no time to look at it so...


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Please look at it and confirm whether or not it was received by Hydro One Inc. on March the 23rd or shortly thereafter.


MR. RUPERT:  Mr. MacDougall, could you just for the court reporter, I think she missed the end of your recitation of who the agreement was between.  It's between Hydro One Networks and...?


MR. MacDOUGALL:  I beg your pardon.  The agreement, Madam Reporter, was between Hydro One Networks Inc. and Andrew Streutker et al.


Well, how come Ms. Newland is looking at it?


MR. ENGELBERG:  I beg your pardon?


MR. MacDOUGALL:  How come Mrs. Newland is looking at it?


MR. ENGELBERG:  I wanted to show Mrs. Newland anything that's being shown to the parties here at this proceeding.  Is there a problem with that?


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Yes.  This is between, right now, ourselves, myself and yourself.  Don't show it to other people.


MR. ENGELBERG:  Then perhaps we can get started on that, Mr. MacDougall.  First of all, you have put it to Mr. Hoglund.  Mr. Hoglund has no knowledge of this document.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Okay.


MR. ENGELBERG:  Secondly, you referred to it as an agreement.  I see nothing in here to indicate that it's anything more than a proposal from the Streutkers and their solicitor to Hydro One Networks Inc.  I see no signature on behalf of Hydro One Networks Inc.  


I can inform the Board that I am aware that an offer was made, and I think I stated this this morning, that an offer was made by the Streutkers to Hydro One earlier this year which was not agreed to or accepted by Hydro One, and therefore this document, if it's going to be characterized, would be an offer or a proposal, but not an agreement.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  It was an agreement that was tendered.


MS. SPOEL:  Well, sorry, Mr. MacDougall, if we're going to get into the niceties of it, our rules do require documents that are proposed to be filed to be filed in advance of the hearing; in which case, of course, Mrs. Newland would have seen them in advance, as would the Board and Board Counsel.  I think that we're not going to have issues about who gets to see materials in this room and who doesn't.


Having said that, if you are proposing to make this an exhibit, then, since Mr. Hoglund doesn't have any knowledge of it, perhaps we could -- if you wanted to refer to it as an offer made by your clients, perhaps we can mark it as an exhibit for purposes of identification for now.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Okay.  I'll ask you to do that.  Thank you.  I'll show you the next document --


MS. SPOEL:  And do you have copies for the other parties?


MR. MacDOUGALL:  No, I don't.  I'll go and get them.  But I don't have hard copies.  I took this out of my own file.


Mr. Hoglund, I'm showing you an agreement that was tendered to Ontario Hydro -- I'm sorry -- on the 22nd of March, between Hydro One Networks Inc. and Ted Tuns.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Perhaps, while you're looking at that what we will do -- we'll do with this and the other one is have copies made.  The copies can be made on-site here.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  I don't have any facility so --


MS. CAMPBELL:  The copies can be made here.


Before we go any further and to keep everything clear, can we say that the document dated and entitled:  "This agreement made the 22nd day of March, 2007," signed by the Streutkers and Mr. MacDougall, not signed by anyone from Hydro One, is marked J.4 for the purposes of identification.

EXHIBIT NO. J.4 (MARKED FOR IDENTIFICATION): DOCUMENT ENTITLED "THIS AGREEMENT MADE THE 22ND DAY OF MARCH, 2007", SIGNED BY MR. STREUTKERS

MS. SPOEL:  Mr. MacDougall, before you proceed, are there other documents that you are going to wish to tender this afternoon?


MR. MacDOUGALL:  No.  And, Madam Chair, just so I get my piece on it, you said, well, usually these are tendered before and all the rest of it.  I agree.  And it was tendered to Hydro --


MS. SPOEL:  No, no, no.  It is tendered to the Board.  It is filed.  Filed with the Board in advance of the hearing and with all the other parties, if you intend to rely on it during the hearing so that we avoid this sort of thing, because if you had filed in advance, someone at Hydro One would have informed themselves and advised Mr. Hoglund or someone else might have come to speak to it.  It's very difficult when you have one witness on behalf of a corporation to deal with surprises.


Our processes require that you file the material with the Board.  It's not a question of filing it with Hydro One, it's a question of filing it with the Board if you wish to refer to it.


However, we will permit you to file it today -- 


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Thank you.


MS. SPOEL:  -- but, given that -- I would suggest, given that, that you not try to make hay of the fact that Mr. Hoglund is not familiar with the document.  He did not know, nor did Mr. Engelberg, that you intended to rely on it today.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Well, Madam Chair, I understand your admonishment, but this has been in Hydro's files since at least the 23rd of March, so why would they not have filed it?


MS. SPOEL:  Because you didn't ask them to in our interrogatory process.


MR. ENGELBERG:  Madam Chair, I'd like to state for the record, I just checked with Mr. Hoglund.  He is not familiar with that offer either, and I agree with Board Counsel's characterization of this document as well as the other one as a document entitled "Agreement," but I must put on the record an objection to Mr. MacDougall's characterization of either document as an agreement in law.  I submit, if anything, they are offers; they are not agreements.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Mr. Hoglund, were those two documents received by Mr. Finn?

MR. HOGLUND:  I really don't know.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Can you inform yourself, please?


MR. ENGELBERG:  No, we won't give that undertaking.  I've stated on the record that Hydro One did receive offers from the parties, and I'm prepared to state that, that they were received by Hydro One.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Okay.  Do you adopt the answer of your counsel, sir?


MR. ENGELBERG:  He can't adopt the answer of his counsel -- 


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Okay.


MR. ENGELBERG:  -- he's not familiar with it.  But there's no issue that offers were made back and forth between the parties.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  I tried this one once before.  I'll try it again.


What happened to it after it was received by Mr. Finn?


MR. ENGELBERG:  I would instruct the witness not to give an undertaking to obtain that information.  In our submission, it's not relevant.


MS. SPOEL:  I think we've already advised, Mr. MacDougall, that the internal processes at Hydro One, you have the answer that it was ‑‑ the acknowledgement that an offer was received.  This witness is not in a position to confirm that this is the offer that was received, not having had an opportunity to inform himself in advance.


We are not prepared to go into a discussion of how the offer was treated once it was received, given that this is not a compensation hearing.  We understand your position that the entire property should be acquired, not simply the portion that's to be the easement. 


How that was ‑‑ whether serious consideration was given to that or not by Hydro One Networks is probably not relevant to that issue, whether they considered it or not.


Whether there's merit to the issue, to your argument as to why the entire thing should have been acquired, whether or not their actions in treating your clients' offers seriously or otherwise, are not relevant to our consideration and won't inform our consideration of it one way or the other.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Okay.


MS. CAMPBELL:  If I could just for a moment, to make sure the record remains clean.


With regard to the second document that Mr. MacDougall handed up, it will be called "A Document Entitled, "Agreement made the 22nd day of March 2007", and it is signed by Tuns and it's marked for identification only.  And I wish to clarify that J.4, the signature was by Streutker only.  I believe I said that already, but just in case I didn't.  


J.4 deals with the Streutker property, and J.5 deals with the Tuns property.
EXHIBIT NO. J.5 (MARKED FOR IDENTIFICATION): DOCUMENT ENTITLED "AGREEMENT MADE THE 22ND DAY OF MARCH 2007" SIGNED BY MR. TUNS

MS. SPOEL:  And sorry, Mr. MacDougall, I would just like to add one point.  I want to assure you and your clients that our consideration of whether the expropriation is in the public interest is not going ‑‑ and whatever relief you may be seeking in alternatives is not going to be informed one way or the other by the internal processes of Hydro One Networks, but by what impact it may or may not have on your client vis-a-vis the other interests that the Board would take into account in determining what's in the public interest.


So the processes and procedures involved in getting to this point, whether good, bad, or indifferent, are not something that I think is going to colour our decision one way or the other.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Thank you. 


Now, J.3 is the policy ‑‑ the draft policy and process; is that correct, sir?


MR. HOGLUND:  Yes.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Yes.  When was this formulated?


MR. HOGLUND:  The date on it is June 19th.  I really don't know beyond that.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Well, is it hot off the press today, or was it done three or four months ago?


MR. HOGLUND:  I really don't know.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Would you ascertain when the draft policy was formulated?


MR. ENGELBERG:  I would ask, before that undertaking is given, the date was put on it June 19th, today's date.  I've been told that it's been around for a few months and will be going to the Hydro One executive committee.  


My submission would be that whether it was first initiated a year ago or some other period of time would not be relevant to this witness's evidence or Hydro One's case.


MS. SPOEL:  Again, Mr. MacDougall, the internal processes of Hydro One ‑‑ Mr. Engelberg has provided a copy of this.  It was not requested as part of the interrogatory process, so you have to take what you can get today with all its warts and without necessarily the opportunity to make the kinds of inquiries you might prefer to make.


He explained the provenance of this document.  I think the June 19th date refers to the date this undertaking was given, which is today's date.  So that is not relevant to the formulation of it.


This witness is not in the executive suite at Hydro One Networks and has not had an opportunity in advance of today's hearing to make the inquiries, because he did not know that you were going to be looking for this kind of document, and it would not normally be filed as part of the case.  


You can ‑‑ so, again, you've got the answer that you got, which was he wasn't involved in it.


However, if there are questions with regard to the policy, we have already had Mr. Engelberg's explanation that there was a previous Ontario Hydro policy that has never been adopted by Hydro One Networks.  So this is it.  


The process involved in formulating it may or may not be relevant to your arguments, but I wouldn't try to push this witness into finding out more than he can, and I'm not prepared to send everybody away to make inquiries of the corporate process at Hydro One Networks, because it hasn't been adopted formally as a policy, anyway.  This is what they're working on at the moment, and...


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Well, Madam Chair, with all due respect, you have put me, or my clients, between a rock and a hard place.  I tender an agreement for the acquisition of the entirety.  I should have thought that I would have received, in answer to my tendering the document, a copy of the policy.  Wouldn't that be reasonable?


MS. SPOEL:  I don't know, Mr. MacDougall.  You can make that ‑‑ since the policy hasn't been formally adopted, I'm not ‑‑ I think you can ask the question whether a copy of the policy was provided to your clients in advance, and you'll get the answer you get.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Okay.  Let me then bring it to this point.


Mr. Hoglund, are you relying on this draft policy or are you not?


MR. ENGELBERG:  Hydro One is not relying on the draft policy.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Okay.


MR. RUPERT:  Mr. MacDougall, let's be clear on your question.  Relying for what purpose?


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Oh.  Are they relying on it, Mr. Rupert, for the purpose of arguing that Hydro should be permitted to take only the easement and not the entirety?


MR. RUPERT:  Thank you.  Thanks.


MR. ENGELBERG:  I have stated this morning on the record, in repetition of what Mr. Hoglund stated in his evidence -- when he was cross‑examined by Mr. MacDougall and when he was questioned by me in direct examination, Mr. Hoglund stated that Hydro One does not take a greater interest in land that it requires for the particular facility that is being built.


So, in that regard, that is Hydro One's evidence.  Whether that stems from a draft policy or not would not be relevant.  


Mr. MacDougall, in my submission, has his answer. That is what Hydro One does.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Do you adopt that answer, Mr. Hoglund?


MR. HOGLUND:  Yes.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Thank you.


Those are all my questions, Madam Chair.


MS. SPOEL:  Thank you, Mr. MacDougall.  Ms. Campbell, do you have any questions of this witness?


MS. CAMPBELL:  The only questions that I have -- I don't know, Mr. MacDougall, do you intend on calling your clients?


MR. MacDOUGALL:  I'll probably call Mr. Streutker, yes.


MS. CAMPBELL:  The only reason I ask that is that I was going to ask a handful of questions about the ownership of both Streutker and the Tuns properties.  And if Mr. Streutker is available then I'll ask those questions of him.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Well, you can ask me.  I'll tell you.  I'll give you any information you want to know about the ownership.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Sorry, not ownership, I'm sorry.  Looking at the layout.  But unfortunately, sir, I can't, because you're not a witness.  


CROSS-EXAMINATION BY MS. CAMPBELL:

MS. CAMPBELL:  But what I want to do, and perhaps what I'll do through Mr. Hoglund, I just wish to take everyone who's in the room and who has a copy of the application to the schematic drawings that form part of the application, to simply discuss and get a better understanding of what the smaller scale looks like.  We looked at the very large drawing and it's just for the purposes of clarity.  What I wish to do is simply look at the schematics that are found.  


For the Tuns' property it's tab 7 of the application.


We looked at the very large schematic.  There are two diagrams that exist.  Underneath that tab, there are actually three pieces of paper.  The first one is the site plan, and I don't really wish to ask any questions concerning that.  


My purpose in turning these up at tab 7, the second diagram and the third one, is simply to ask you questions concerning the -- probably the third page is the best one to start with.  And that's simply to ask you, it shows a permanent easement of -- I honestly don't know how to say 0.1148 of a hectare.  I don't know what the short form for that would be.  But that's what it is, which is roughly, slightly under a third of an acre, from what I can understand.


And the permanent new easement is for what purpose, sir?


MR. HOGLUND:  Sorry, the permanent new easement?


MS. CAMPBELL:  The permanent new easement is for what purpose?


MR. HOGLUND:  I believe that's part 2.  It doesn't show as part 2 on here, but that's -- yes, that is to locate three smaller structures on it.


MS. CAMPBELL:  And the structures are what, the three smaller structures are what?


MR. HOGLUND:  Well, they're transmission structures.  They're called PBDs.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Which stands for what?


MR. HOGLUND:  I have no idea, to be quite honest, and I can't find anybody else who can remember.  They've been around for 50 years.


MS. CAMPBELL:  So when you talk about a structure, are they comparable to any of the photographs that we were looking at earlier?


MR. HOGLUND:  No, they're much smaller than that.


MS. CAMPBELL:  And what's their purpose for?


MR. HOGLUND:  The wires on the existing line that runs alongside Towerline Road, it allows the wires to come off the existing line and drop down to these structures, and then go in the direction -- onto the Streutker property and whatnot.  So they're structures required to connect the new section of line to the existing line.


MS. CAMPBELL:  And do those structures have a footprint?


MR. HOGLUND:  Yes.


MS. CAMPBELL:  And how big is the footprint?


MR. HOGLUND:  They're one of two sizes.  They're either 6 feet in diameter -- 


MS. CAMPBELL:  Yes.


MR. HOGLUND:  -- or they could be 8 fee, depending on soil conditions.


MS. CAMPBELL:  And do you know which one, the 6 foot or the 8 foot, would be used here?


MR. HOGLUND:  I don't know off the top of my head, no.  It would be matter of the type of soils; the specific soils investigations and stuff like that would determine the size of the structure.  But they're typically in that range, 6 feet or possibly 8 feet.  I suspect it would be 

6 feet.


MS. CAMPBELL:  And how high are they?


MR. HOGLUND:  They come in different heights, depending on their uses and whatnot.  They would be shorter than the existing structures that are there now because they take the wires underneath the existing lines.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Okay.


MR. HOGLUND:  I don't have an exact height for you but they'd be, you know, in the sort of 50- to 60-foot range.


MS. CAMPBELL:  All right.  So 6 to 8 feet at the 

base -- 


MR. HOGLUND:  Yes.


MS. CAMPBELL:  -- and 50 to 60 feet high?


MR. HOGLUND:  They could be, you know, in that order, yes.


MS. CAMPBELL:  All right.  And there are three of them?


MR. HOGLUND:  Yes.


MS. CAMPBELL:  All right.  When I look at the permanent new easement, I see three little circles.  


MR. HOGLUND:  Yes.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Right above the word "part."  Is that where those structures would go?


MR. HOGLUND:  Yes.  Yes.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Okay.  And there is a square above the second word "part," so in the permanent easement, it's a square with an X in it.  Does that signify anything?  Is that another structure?


MR. HOGLUND:  That's another existing structure.


MS. CAMPBELL:  That's an existing structure?


MR. HOGLUND:  Yes.


MS. CAMPBELL:  And the line that goes from that square to the other square, it says "Hydro One Easement Instrument".  Is that an existing easement?


MR. HOGLUND:  Yes, it is, yes.


MS. CAMPBELL:  All right.  And the structure at either end, what is that?


MR. HOGLUND:  Both those, one is labelled:  "Tower" or TWR189.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Yes.


MR. HOGLUND:  And the other one is Tower 188.


MS. CAMPBELL:  All right.


MR. HOGLUND:  Those are two existing structures.


MS. CAMPBELL:  All right.  Hydro One would have placed those on that property already?


MR. HOGLUND:  Yes, they've been there for many years.


MS. CAMPBELL:  How long is many years?


MR. HOGLUND:  Oh, they probably were put up, I'm kind of guessing around 1910, 1915; in around that range, probably.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Okay.  Have they been replaced at any time?


MR. HOGLUND:  No, I don't believe so.


MS. CAMPBELL:  That's pretty sturdy, isn't it?  All right.  So we have got an easement there.  What is that easement -- is that a transmission line that I'm looking at there?


MR. HOGLUND:  Yes.  Yes, that's a transmission line.


MS. CAMPBELL:  That's a transmission line.


MR. HOGLUND:  Yes.  


MS. CAMPBELL:  And the temporary working easement, sir, what's that for?  That's the square block in heavy print.


MR. HOGLUND:  That's to allow the assembly of these structures that are bringing in the -- you know, like a  crane will be required to erect the structures and do the connections to the existing line.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Yes.


MR. HOGLUND:  And there will be a requirement to bring other equipment in as well, an augering machine to auger the foundations, to give working -- an area to work around and to lay materials down so they can be assembled and then erected.


MS. CAMPBELL:  For what period of time do you require that temporary easement?


MR. HOGLUND:  I believe that's part of the application, but in general terms it would be required for several months.


MS. CAMPBELL:  And after that several months' period, you would probably need to get on to that property, the permanent easement, to do maintenance, I would take it.


MR. HOGLUND:  From time to time.


MS. CAMPBELL:  From time to time.


MR. HOGLUND:  Yes.


MS. CAMPBELL:  And that would be part of the permanent easement rights that you are seeking?


MR. HOGLUND:  Yes.  Yes, that's correct.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Okay.  And I notice that the road is called Towerline Road.  Is it called Towerline Road because of the two towers?


MR. HOGLUND:  It's called Towerline Road because the existing transmission line follows it for quite a distance --  


MS. CAMPBELL:  All right.


MR. HOGLUND:  -- from Woodstock right through to almost Brantford.


MS. CAMPBELL:  All right.  So Towerline Road already has a significant transmission line running down it?  Beside it?


MR. HOGLUND:  Yes.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Thank you.


The next map that I would like to look at, or, rather, schematic that I would like to look at has to do with the Streutker property.  And it is -- behind that tab, which is tab 4 of the application, there are three sheets of paper.  What I would like to discuss with you, sir, is the last one.


And once again, I see in the bottom that we have Towerline Road, but obviously the scale is somewhat different here than the one we just looked at.


You had indicated on the very big map what structures would go along this Streutker property.  Using this smaller diagram, could you locate them for me on this smaller diagram?  Would you do them, and then, yes, just sort of hold it up?


MR. HOGLUND:  Okay.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Just because I'd like to have a sense of the scale.


MR. HOGLUND:  There it is.  Do you want me to bring it around?


MS. CAMPBELL:  Gosh, my eyes are just not that good anymore.  I won't admit to any particular age right now, but I notice they haven't been improving.


All right.  So what I planned to do with this, I'm going to -- may I take this?


MR. HOGLUND:  Yes.  Yes.


MS. CAMPBELL:  May I simply -- all I want to do is I want to have it so that the Panel Members can see it and transfer into their books what they see on this.


MR. HOGLUND:  And again, those are obviously very approximate locations.


MS. CAMPBELL:  I understand that, sir.


MR. HOGLUND:  I just did it from memory.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Thank you. 

And my questions concerning this, sir, again, we have the temporary working easement.  And can you tell me briefly what the temporary working easement is that appears to be on the -- I guess, the south end of the easement that's to go through the Streutker property on either side?


MR. HOGLUND:  Right.  Well, it's a -- it's a significant ‑‑ that structure is a large turning tower or anchor tower.


MS. CAMPBELL:  In that picture we saw?


MR. HOGLUND:  In the picture, that's right.


MS. CAMPBELL:  The lattice --


MR. HOGLUND:  The lattice-type structure.  And the temporary easements are to allow efficient assembly of ‑‑ there's dead‑end insulators and things that hang on the -- you know, on the anchor towers of this sort of nature.  So to enable that, the temporary easement would allow cranes or cranes with buckets on it, so men could go up there, or women, I suppose, could go up there and do those connections.  That's the main purpose for it.


MS. CAMPBELL:  That's the main purpose for it.  All right.  So how long would these temporary easements be for?


MR. HOGLUND:  It would be a matter of several months, during the construction phase of this, to construct this, so... 


MS. CAMPBELL:  And I think earlier you indicated that the structures that would go on the Streutker permanent easement were a mix of structures, so there was the lattice tower and there was the pole?


MR. HOGLUND:  Yes.  The first one, the one nearest the road, is the lattice structure that we were speaking of.


MS. CAMPBELL:  I see.


MR. HOGLUND:  The other three would be steel poles, single pedestal sort of steel poles that are identified in the ‑‑ well, the class EA document.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Thank you.  And I'm correct that the width of the permanent easement that you sought is roughly 30 feet ‑‑ sorry, 30 metres?


MR. HOGLUND:  Thirty metres, yes.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Is it 30 metres on either side, because I see a line going down the middle, or is it the complete width of 30 metres?


MR. HOGLUND:  It's a complete width of 30 metres.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Right.  And can you explain why a width of that size is necessary?  That's approximately 100 feet, is it not?


MR. HOGLUND:  Yes.  That's correct, yeah.


MS. CAMPBELL:  All right.  Can you explain why 100 feet is necessary?


MR. HOGLUND:  There's a number of factors that are taken into account to determine the width of a right of way.  Probably the main ones are maintenance ‑‑ well, construction, as well as maintenance access, so you would want to be able to get whatever equipment is required to, you know, pass along the right of way during maintenance, and of course during construction.


The other often key issue is what's referred to as swingout.  During high‑wind situations, where the wires -- you know, the conductors can swing with the wind.  You know, when the wind is blowing in that particular direction, they'll swing them out towards the edge of the right of way, and you want to have sufficient property under the designed amount of maximum wind such that the conductors will not swing out beyond -- beyond the conductor ‑‑ sorry, beyond the edge of the right of way.  


In fact, there's a buffer that's added in there, as well, just to make sure it doesn't, sort of idea.  But it's a combination of those two issues.  There's access, you know, for construction, as well as maintenance, as well as this notion of swingout.


There are some other factors that are ‑‑ but those are the ones that usually rule.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Is that a standard width for a construction of this sort?


MR. HOGLUND:  It's ‑‑ yes, it is.  It's very typical.


The one thing I should mention is that the structures, the swingout, if you will, the effect of the wind and whatnot, is impacted by how far the structures are apart. 


In this case, you know, since it's across an open area like this, we've spaced out the structures as best we can to minimize the number of structures on the -- you know, on the properties, and that causes -- you know, like, a wider right of way would be required.


But 100 feet or 30 metres is very typical for a 115 kV line.


MS. CAMPBELL:  All right.  And the 115 kV line was selected by Hydro One as being the most appropriate for the requirements of Toyota?


MR. HOGLUND:  Yes.  Yes.


MS. CAMPBELL:  And I neglected to ask you, when I was looking at the Tuns property, why the easement was of the size and shape it was.  What was the reason for that?


MR. HOGLUND:  The permanent easements you're referring to?


MS. CAMPBELL:  Yes.


MR. HOGLUND:  Yes.  Well, they're squared off, I guess I'll start.  The lower one, I think that's part 3, if I remember correctly -- or part 2, I guess it was.  It's of that shape to allow sufficient width, if you will, to ‑‑ and space around it so you can -- you can install those three structures, you know, those PBD structures and allow maintenance around it so you could again get access around it.


You wouldn't ‑‑ we talked about blowout or swingout, stuff like that.  You wouldn't have much of that here.  That would be a controlling factor.  It's mainly to have sufficient space to construct it, but for maintenance, as well.  That would be the main factors, allow enough space around it for those sort of activities.


MS. CAMPBELL:  So would the same concerns that you talked about, when you were discussing why you chose 30-metre easement or width for the Streutker facilities, would the same factors enter into consideration of why you need that much space for these facilities, these three structures?


MR. HOGLUND:  Yes.  Yes.


MS. CAMPBELL:  The same issues?


MR. HOGLUND:  Yes.  Yes, the same issues would be considered or were considered.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Those are my questions.  Thank you, Mr. Hoglund.


QUESTIONS FROM THE BOARD:

MS. SPOEL:  Mr. Hoglund, I just have a couple of questions just following up on Ms. Campbell's questions.


A permanent easement that exists now, is that ‑‑ along Towerline Road, is that on property also owned by the Tuns -- is that part of the Tuns property that supports or underlies that easement --


MR. HOGLUND:  Yes.


MS. SPOEL:  -- is the question?


MR. HOGLUND:  Yes.


MS. SPOEL:  And with respect to the ‑‑ is it Streutker?


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Streutker.


MS. SPOEL:  Streutker.  I'm sorry.  With respect to the Streutker property, if you look at -- go back to tab 4, the piece that's ‑‑ I guess page 31, which is the second of the three pages there, it shows the easement.  


And I'm just wondering, looking at this map rather than some kind of written document, if you know what the full extent of the property is.  I see Highway 401 is on the left, and there is Lot 11, Concession 1 and Lot 10, Concession 1.


Can you describe on this what ‑‑ or is this maybe a question I can ask of the Streutkers later if they're called as witnesses, but in the event they're not --


MR. HOGLUND:  My understanding is it stretches from Highway 401.


MS. SPOEL:  Mm‑hm.


MR. HOGLUND:  It's bounded by the CN Rail across the top, and it's comprised of Lot 10 and 11.  So it stretches over to the right‑hand side of Lot 10.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  It's shown right behind tab number 4, Madam Chair.


MS. SPOEL:  Oh, so that shaded piece on the previous page is -- where it says "Subject", that's the entire holding?


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Yes.


MS. SPOEL:  Thank you for that clarification, Mr. MacDougall.  That's very helpful. 


MR. RUPERT:  Mr. Hoglund, just on the Streutker property, again, on the four towers, the one lattice tower, and then three steel poles, what are the normal restrictions that there would be, whether by agreement or by just physically what you can do with the property once those facilities are in place? 


For example, in gas pipelines, there's now a lot of rules involved in whether you can farm close to those or have structures close to those.  What are the normal restrictions there would be on agricultural uses of property with those structures on them?


MR. HOGLUND:  You can farm under it.  Most farming operations can continue within the right of way.  Obviously where the structures themselves are located, you know, naturally they're occupied, but the rest of ‑‑ the entirety of the rest of the right of way, it still can be -- can be farmed.


Most machinery can pass, you know, freely within the right of way, most large farm machinery and whatnot.  There is a limit as to ‑‑ there are some height restrictions and things of that nature.


But most machinery can continue to operate, you know, within that area.  So it can be continued to be farmed in most farm operations.


MR. RUPERT:  And for your access, which may be from time to time required for maintenance or other uses, does that effectively mean there is a roadway there that becomes unusable because it has to be kept available for Hydro One in the event of access that is required?  


MR. HOGLUND:  No, no.  No.  We wouldn't have a permanent road in a situation like this.  We would remove any access roadway that we made for construction purposes, and during operations there would be no roadbed left there at all across a farm operation like this.


Unless, you know, it's possible the farmer may want a road for whatever reason, although I can't imagine in this case wanting it, for their own purposes, and that sort of thing, you know, can be negotiated or discussed or whatever.  But typically we would remove any roadway at all.  And when we go in there for whatever purpose, we would deal with it at that time, during the maintenance operations.


MR. RUPERT:  Thank you.


MS. SPOEL:  Mr. Engelberg, do you have any re-examination of this witness?


MR. ENGELBERG:  Yes, I have a very short re-examination, Madame Chair.


MR. ENGELBERG:  Mr. MacDougall mentioned before the lunch break that he had two issues in this proceeding, one of which is a possible alternative source of power, being methane gas.  He asked a few questions of Mr. Hoglund about that, so I just wanted to ask a couple of questions by way of clarification.


RE-EXAMINATION BY MR. ENGELBERG:

MR. HOGLUND:  Mr. Hoglund, do you recall the questions before lunch as to the possibility of producing electricity from methane gas?


MR. HOGLUND:  Yes.  Yes.


MR. ENGELBERG:  I believe you mentioned that, from the standpoint of the Toyota plan, you would be talking about some, I believe the word you used was "mega" operation.


MR. HOGLUND:  Yes, I think I said "humungous."


MR. ENGELBERG:  Humongous.  I prefer that word.  


When Mr. MacDougall began asking his questions, he mentioned a farm somewhere, and you said you were familiar with it.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  The Stanton farm.


MR. ENGELBERG:  Stanton farm.  What can you tell us about that without going into possibly confidential customer information?  What can you tell us, if anything, about what could be produced from such an operation and whether that would be helpful to an operation such as Toyota's?


MR. HOGLUND:  Well, Stanton Farms, as I think was pointed out at the time, is located quite some distance away from Woodstock.  It's north, northwest of London, in the Ilderton area, I believe, so there's an issue about proximity being -- you know, getting to Toyota, I guess, for one thing.


The scale of a typical operation, certainly the Stanton one, of that sort of nature, and there are a number of these that are being discussed right at the moment around the province, they're usually measured in the kilowatt, hundreds of kilowatts size.  The requirements of a plant like Toyota's is measured in the tens of MW or tens of thousands of kilowatts.  So there's quite a difference in scale.


That's why I say that if you needed to conglomerate something of sufficient generation from this source to supply something like Toyota, it would have to be humongous -- you know, numerous of this sort of size we're talking about.


So there is a practical limit, I think, as to what could be used in a situation like this.


In addition to that, the whole idea of -- a plant like Toyota would require, you know -- it's sort of paramount to have a reliable supply of electricity.  So you would have to have alternate ways of getting generation to them.  And that's where a transmission line does come in use -- well, becomes very essential, really, so you can get generation from different sources delivered to a particular plant like this.


MR. ENGELBERG:  When you use the words "alternate supply," is that like a backup supply?


MR. HOGLUND:  Yes, in essence, that's what I'm talking about, yes.  I mean, generation comes from various sources in the province and that sort of idea.


MR. ENGELBERG:  And you're saying that would involve a transmission line solution as well?


MR. HOGLUND:  Yes, I can't see a way how you would end up with a reliable supply without a transmission solution.


MR. ENGELBERG:  Thank you, Mr. Hoglund.  Those are all my questions.


MS. SPOEL:  Thank you.  Do you have any other witnesses, Mr. Engelberg?


MR. ENGELBERG:  No, I don't, Madam Chair.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Mr. MacDougall?


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Yes.  Mr. Streutker --


MS. SPOEL:  Before we proceed with Mr. MacDougall, Ms. Newland, are you planning to call witnesses?


MS. NEWLAND:  No, Madam Chair, I am not.


MS. SPOEL:  Mr. MacDougall.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Mr. Streutker, will you come and sit right here?  Thank you.


INTERVENOR ANDREW STREUTKER;  Sworn

EXAMINATION-IN-CHIEF BY MR. MacDOUGALL:


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Mr. Streutker, you're the owner of the property which is before the Board for an application  to expropriate a portion thereof?


MR. STREUTKER:  Yes.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  When did you purchase the property, sir?


MR. STREUTKER:  Approximately 1991, or '92 area.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Thank you.  And how large is it?


MR. STREUTKER:  It's 172 acres, approximately.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Yes.  And what is the nature of the operation on it?


MR. STREUTKER:  Dairy.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  And how many milking cows do you have, sir?


MR. STREUTKER:  At this time we have roughly 250.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Okay.  And how often do you milk?


MR. STREUTKER:  Twice a day.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Where do you sell your milk?


MR. STREUTKER:  My milk, it's sold to the United States of America.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  And do you know whether that is under any agreements between Canada and the United States?


MR. STREUTKER:  Yes.  To my knowledge, it is at this time, yes.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Thank you.  Can you tell us the nature of the operation.  Do you grow hay?


MR. STREUTKER:  I grow basically mostly just -- all I grow right now is corn.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  And that's part of the herd's diet?


MR. STREUTKER:  Yes.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Yes.  For the production of that, you would cultivate the lands?


MR. STREUTKER:  Yes.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  I see.  And, Mr. Streutker, can you help us as to the effect of an easement down the centre of your property dividing it into three pieces.


MR. STREUTKER:  Well, the inconvenience, to say the least, I'm sure.  Nowadays you have to be a large operator and cultivate lots of land in order to feed all those animals, and equipment gets bigger all the time.  And we rely on hired help all the time for help to do the work.  

And, yeah, it's something, it's something you had to watch out for and be careful for, and something that's never -- you know, my dad spent 30 years putting fences up and I spent five years taking them down because we want big fields nowadays so you can do things quicker and more efficiently.  And with towers in the way, it's going to be, yeah, an inconvenience to say the least.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Mr. Streutker, do you have any concern about the effect of the hydro line on your herd either by way of production or reproduction?


MR. STREUTKER:  There is an issue that fears me  greatly, is the possibility of stray voltage.  I have a friend of mine who is a dairy farmer, and he suffers from stray voltage.  


Holstein cows are ten times more susceptible to stray voltage than human beings are, so they can sense it a lot quicker and it has a large effect on them with reproduction, production and feed consumption.  It's not to say, I don't have that issue now, but at any time they say you mess with -- or mess -- you work with hydro in any which way, something like that could happen.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Thank you.  Those are all of my questions.


MS. SPOEL:  Mr. Engelberg, do you have any questions for Mr. Streutker?


MR. ENGELBERG:  Yes, thank you, Madam Chair.  I have a couple.


CROSS-EXAMINATION BY MR. ENGELBERG:

MR. ENGELBERG:  Mr. Streutker, Mr. MacDougall questioned you and he referred to an easement down the centre of your property.  We were just taken through the maps by Mr. Hoglund a few minutes ago.  Is it your understanding that the poles would go down the centre of your property?


MR. STREUTKER:  No.  It is my understanding it goes down more on the west side, closest to the highway, and it does not go straight across the property, which actually makes it even more inconvenient, because it goes on an angle, if you look at how my property sits.  When it gets to the north end of my property, by the CN Railway, it is very close to the corner of the property.  And, again, when it comes down to the fact of if this ends up going to a compensation, to me, that is a -- is not appealing to me whatsoever.


MR. ENGELBERG:  But you would agree it's not down the centre of the property or anywhere close to the centre of the property?


MR. STREUTKER:  It is fairly close to the centre of the property on the south side.


MR. ENGELBERG:  Okay.  Well, perhaps we can debate that in argument if we need to.


You also mentioned your concern about stray voltage.  You're aware, I take it, Mr. Streutker, that there are transmission lines all through the province of Ontario in areas that are used for dairy farming?


MR. STREUTKER:  Yes.  And from what I understand from stray voltage ‑ I'm not an expert on it, of course ‑ it is a silent -- not killer, but you can't see it.  You can't hardly test for it.  And if it's there, it's hard to get rid of.


MR. ENGELBERG:  But you are aware of, I take it, that Hydro One and other local distribution companies throughout the province do test for it and provide solutions to any problem that may occur?


MR. STREUTKER:  I do understand they attempt to provide solutions, yes.


MR. ENGELBERG:  Thank you very much.  I have no further questions.


MS. SPOEL:  Ms. Newland?


MS. NEWLAND:  No questions, thank you.


MS. SPOEL:  Ms. Campbell?


MS. CAMPBELL:  I just have a handful of questions.


CROSS-EXAMINATION BY MS. CAMPBELL:

MS. CAMPBELL:  There was a statement made that the property was divided into three pieces because of the location of the easement, and perhaps my ears played tricks on me, but I heard three pieces instead of two pieces.


MR. STREUTKER:  I'm not sure I understand the question.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Well, I'll explain.  I said three pieces.  It was the easement and the piece on each side. That's three.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Oh, all right.  Thank you for the clarification.  I understand now.  I thought perhaps I was misreading the map.


And my other question is I take it in addition ‑‑ you run the farming operation.  I take it you live somewhere on the property, sir?


MR. STREUTKER:  Yes, I do.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Okay.  Could you just tell me -- I'd like to see what -- the location of the buildings, et cetera, if you could use this map that's at tab 4 --


MR. STREUTKER:  Mm‑hm.


MS. CAMPBELL:  -- where your ‑‑


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Which one?


MS. CAMPBELL:  Tab 4, the one in the middle that's got the long line going down through it, has the number 31 in the lower right‑hand side.


So what we'll do, sir, if you could mark it on, and then I can show it to the Panel.  Can you locate your house, the dairy buildings?


MR. STREUTKER:  There's actually two operations.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Two operations.


MR. STREUTKER:  Yeah, one in this corner here.  There's a house.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Okay.


MR. STREUTKER:  And a barn.

MS. CAMPBELL:  Okay.  Let's just hang on, because someone's going to have to try to read this.


So if you're looking at this diagram and you go to the lower left‑hand corner --


MR. STREUTKER:  Yes.


MS. CAMPBELL:  -- above where Towerline Road is, and what we've got ‑‑ is the house right here?


MR. STREUTKER:  Yes.


MS. CAMPBELL:  And by "right here", I'm drawing an X, and the house is, schematically speaking, about a half an inch up from the Towerline Road, so that's the house?  That's where you live with your family?


MR. STREUTKER:  I don't live in that house.


MS. CAMPBELL:  You don't live in the house?


MR. STREUTKER:  No.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Who lives in the house?


MR. STREUTKER:  The hired help does.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Hired help, all right.  And then you indicated that there was another X close to that house?


MR. STREUTKER:  Yes.


MS. CAMPBELL:  And what's that?  


MR. STREUTKER:  That's a dairy barn.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Dairy barn.  Is he the one that gets to get up early in the morning and milk the cows?


MR. STREUTKER:  No, I do.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Oh, good for you.  Good for you. 


MR. STREUTKER:  And on that same property -- I'm sorry, go ahead.


MS. CAMPBELL:  The dairy barn, that's where the 250 cows are?


MR. STREUTKER:  No.


MS. CAMPBELL:  What's in the dairy barn?


MR. STREUTKER:  This what they call the dry cows, where they go on holidays for two months before they have the next baby.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Do you give massages and everything?


MR. STREUTKER:  I try to.  They usually run away from me.


MS. CAMPBELL:  So the dry cows are there, and that's the dairy part.  Any other structure on what I will call the left side of the easement?


MR. STREUTKER:  There's a driving shed.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Driving shed.  And where would that be in relation to the dairy barn?


MR. STREUTKER:  Very close to the house, but to the left of the house.


MS. CAMPBELL:  All right.  So closer to Highway 1?


MR. STREUTKER:  401.


MS. CAMPBELL:  401, I apologize.  So that's the driving shed.


MR. STREUTKER:  Yes.


MS. CAMPBELL:  And what's in the driving shed?


MR. STREUTKER:  It will be equipment or hay.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Okay.  Anything else in this area?


MR. STREUTKER:  Yeah, there's also a shop where we do repairs, right above the driving shed.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Oh, I've run out of room.


MR. STREUTKER:  You've run out of room.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Okay.  So right above the driving shed is a ‑‑


MR. STREUTKER:  -- is a shop.


MS. CAMPBELL:  A shop.


MR. STREUTKER:  Yeah.


MS. CAMPBELL:  All right.  And repairs are done there.


MR. STREUTKER:  Yes.


MS. CAMPBELL:  To farm equipment?


MR. STREUTKER:  Yes.


MS. CAMPBELL:  All right.  And is there anything else in that area?


MR. STREUTKER:  There's one smaller building between the dairy barn and the house, and we used to call that -- it used to be called a calf barn.  We still call it a calf barn, but...

 
MS. CAMPBELL:  All right.  And that's the calf barn.


MR. STREUTKER:  That was the original facilities that my dad worked out of.


MS. CAMPBELL:  When you bought the property, did you buy it from your father?


MR. STREUTKER:  Yes.


MS. CAMPBELL:  So how long has it been in the family?


MR. STREUTKER:  Since 1956, I think, or '7.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Okay.  And has it always been a dairy operation?


MR. STREUTKER:  Yes.


MS. CAMPBELL:  All right.  Now, we've got these ‑‑ we have the shop, the driving shed, the dairy barn, the calf barn, and the house.  Anything else in this area?


MR. STREUTKER:  No.


MS. CAMPBELL:  All right.  Now, you live somewhere on the property?


MR. STREUTKER:  Well, we have another house my dad lives in still.


MS. CAMPBELL:  All right.


MR. STREUTKER:  And that's on the -- basically, on the lot line.  I think that's what we considered a lot line.  No, that's not it.  No, but it is on that line, in that area.  My dad's house is right in the middle of that property, just a little bit to the right of the first tower.


MS. CAMPBELL:  A little bit to the right of the first tower.  


MR. STREUTKER:  Within inches of --


MS. CAMPBELL:  So if I'm looking at page 31 and I go up from the Towerline Road and I see the word "Oxford"  --


MR. STREUTKER:  That's way too far.


MS. CAMPBELL:  That's way too far?


MR. STREUTKER:  It's very close to the road is his house.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Really close to the road, okay.  So very close to the road, and that's another house?


MR. STREUTKER:  Yes.


MS. CAMPBELL:  All right.  And that's your father's house --


MR. STREUTKER:  Yes.


MS. CAMPBELL:  -- or that's where your father lives?


MR. STREUTKER:  That's where my father lives.  And the house belongs to the farm, but my dad lives there, and his wife.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Thank you.  And any other structures in that area?


MR. STREUTKER:  No.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Anything else we should know about?


MR. STREUTKER:  No.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Anything else built on the property?


MR. STREUTKER:  Yes.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Where?


MR. STREUTKER:  Okay, if you go approximately above the T.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Above the T in Towerline Road?


MR. STREUTKER:  Mm‑hm.  That's my house.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Okay.


MR. STREUTKER:  Where I live.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Thank you.  Any other structure around your house?


MR. STREUTKER:  A little distance above the house and to the left a very small bit, there is an older, what you call it, a bank barn.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Mm‑hm.


MR. STREUTKER:  Which houses some of the cattle.  And in behind that bank barn, there's a large free stall barn, which houses approximately 200 cattle.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Free style?


MR. STREUTKER:  Free stall, where cows can go in, lay down and get up.  They're not tied up.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Oh, free stall.  I get it.  Any other structures on the property?


MR. STREUTKER:  Tied to the free stall barn is where you call your parlour, where you milk your cows.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Called a parlour?


MR. STREUTKER:  Called a parlour, yes.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Come into my parlour, said the spider to the fly.  Okay, now I understand that rhyme.


Okay, any other structures on the property?


MR. STREUTKER:  No.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Right.  And when your father purchased the property, was Highway 401 in place?


MR. STREUTKER:  It was gravel.  I think it was on its way.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Okay.  All right.  And so when you bought it, that was developed?  Highway 401 was developed?


MR. STREUTKER:  Yes.


MS. CAMPBELL:  And was the CN Railway always there, to your best ‑‑ to your recollection?


MR. STREUTKER:  Yes.


MS. CAMPBELL:  And Towerline Road?


MR. STREUTKER:  Yes.


MS. CAMPBELL:  All right.  And so there are no other structures?


MR. STREUTKER:  No.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Good.  Thank you very much.  I appreciate that information.


MS. SPOEL:  Ms. Campbell, do you have any other questions?


MS. CAMPBELL:  Oh, I'm sorry.  No.  Thank you very much.  I appreciate the answers that you've given me.


MS. SPOEL:  I just have one question relating again to the farming operation.


QUESTIONS FROM THE BOARD:

MS. SPOEL:  Are the lands -- are any of the lands used as pasture?  I think you said you had crops mostly, but I'm not sure whether there were areas that were also pasture for the cattle.


MR. STREUTKER:  Yes.  If I may, there is a pasture where the cows pasture, and that's where the one lattice tower is going to be placed.  And, pardon me, I didn't mention that we do have hay, as well, but that's on rented ground.


MS. SPOEL:  Right.  And so the pasture is proposed to be or currently is sort of north of Towerline Road in between your father's house and the other farm buildings that are to the ‑‑ further to the west?


MR. STREUTKER:  Yes. 

MS. SPOEL:  Thank you.  I think that's it.  Thank you very much.


MS. SPOEL:  Any other witnesses?


MR. ENGELBERG:  Yes, Madam Chair.  I request permission to recall my witness, Mr. Hoglund, simply to ask a couple of questions about a new matter that was raised during the evidence of Mr. Streutker, of which we did not have any notice.  Very short.  Two questions about a brand new matter.


MS. SPOEL:  Perhaps, Mr. Engelberg, you could explain what the matter is, what the issue is that is new and has caught you by surprise.


MR. ENGELBERG:  It's the issue of the stray voltage that we had never heard of before.


MS. SPOEL:  Well, Mr. Engelberg, if you wish to ask Mr. Hoglund some questions about how Hydro One Networks deals -- I assume he's not an expert on stray voltage.


MR. ENGELBERG:  It will be even shorter than that, Madam Chair.


MS. SPOEL:  I think maybe, Mr. Engelberg, we have Mr. Streutker's evidence.  I am not sure that we need to -- It's a matter, I think, probably for compensation, if that comes up, as to how you deal with questions of stray voltage.


MR. ENGELBERG:  All right, Madam Chair.


MS. SPOEL:  I'm not inclined to be recalling witnesses at this point.  I don't want to turn it into an inquiry on stray voltage.


Is there anything else?  Any other matters?


What I would propose is that we have oral argument.  Perhaps would counsel like a short break to prepare?  Maybe we could take 15 minutes now and come back.  Is that acceptable to you, Mr. MacDougall?


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Certainly.


MR. RUPERT:  Mr. Engelberg?


MR. ENGELBERG:  Yes.  Thank you.


MS. SPOEL:  We'll take 15 minutes, come back -- let's say 5 past 2.  Thank you.


--- Recess taken at 1:48 p.m.


‑‑‑ On resuming at 2:06 p.m. 


MS. SPOEL:  Please be seated.  I understand Ms. Campbell is going to lead off with some advice on our statutory powers, and the like, and then Mr. Engelberg, you'll follow, and, Ms. Newland, if you have anything to add, and then, Mr. MacDougall, we'll hear from you.


SUBMISSIONS BY MS. CAMPBELL:

MS. CAMPBELL:  I'm going start my remarks by simply reviewing the legislation that governs the hearing that we're involved in right now.  And before I start that, which is section 99, I just want to indicate that the Ontario Energy Board Act of 1998 starts with Board objectives regarding electricity.  


And it's, I think, important to recall that when considering any aspect of the Act that relates to electricity, the objectives that are stated at the very beginning of the Act must be considered, and that is section 1(1), and it reads:

"The Board, in carrying out its responsibilities under this or any other Act in relation to electricity, shall be guided by the following objectives:

"1.  To protect the interests of consumers with respect to prices and the adequacy, reliability, and quality of electricity service;

"2.  To promote an economic efficiency and cost effectiveness in the generation, transmission, distribution, sale and demand management of electricity, and to facilitate the maintenance of a financially viable electricity industry."


Now, the actual section that brings us here today is section 99 of the Act.  Section 99 has five parts, but one of them was repealed, so it is really only four.


Section 99(1) indicates:

"The following persons may apply to the Board for authority to expropriate land for a work."


And then there are two categories of persons:

"Any person who has leave under this part or a predecessor of this part."


And then the second category, and that's the category that is applicable to the fact situation here:

"Any person who intends to construct, expand or reinforce an electricity transmission line or an electricity distribution line, or make an interconnection and who is exempted from the requirement to obtain leave by the Board under section 95 or a regulation made under clause 127(1)(f)."


There is an exemption that is in effect in this particular case.  The exemption is in effect because the proposed transmission line is under 2 kilometres in length.  Hydro One is exempt from having to obtain a leave to construct from the Board because of Ontario Regulation 161/99.  Section 6.2(1)(c) of that regulation states that:

"A person is exempt from making a leave-to-construct application under section 92 if the person is constructing or reinforcing an electricity transmission line that is 2 kilometres or less in length."


And so Hydro One's application falls under section 99(1).2.  Section 99(2) reads that:

"The Board shall set a date for the hearing of the application, but the date shall not be earlier than fourteen days after the date of the application."


99(3) states:

"The applicant shall file with the Board a plan and description of the land required, together with the names of all persons having an apparent interest in the land."


Section 99(4) was repealed; and then 99(5), which is the actual issuance of an order, and that section reads:

"If after the hearing the Board is of the opinion that the expropriation of the land is in the public interest, it may make an order authorizing the applicant to expropriate the land."


And the key aspect of that particular section is that the Board - or that is, in this case, the Panel - is to form an opinion that the expropriation of land is in the public interest before it makes an order.  And that, of course, leads to the question:  What is the public interest, and what is in the public interest in this application?


Yesterday I provided all of the counsel on the case with a small brief of authorities on public interest.  That was provided via e‑mail, and at the beginning of the hearing this morning I provided a hard copy of that brief to my friends, and I'm going hand up a copy to each of the Panel Members.


There are three tabs in this brief, and each tab has a very small amount of paper behind it, so my remarks will be quite short so that I can allow those who have varying interests in this hearing to make their argument.


And if I could take you to tab 1.  Tab 1 is a chapter called "The Public Interest".  It's an excerpt from a five‑volume work called "Practice and Procedure Before Administrative Tribunals."  And the entirety of the chapter is produced there, and it is not my intention to read the entire thing into the record at this point.  


However, I wish to draw to the Panel's attention the following portions of this chapter, which deal with how public interest is defined by an administrative tribunal and the decisions of various courts that have wrestled with the same issue.


If you turn to the very first page, which is marked 8‑1, one of the first comments by the authors of this textbook is the fact that:

"The public interest is the focus of an administrative agency and it is the focus that distinguishes it from a court."  


And if you look through the Ontario Energy Board's act, and in fact its Rules of Practice, the phrase "in the public interest" is repeated over and over again.  And it's very clear that in section 99(5) it is the key determinant of whether or not an order should be issued to expropriate the property that's sought by Hydro One in its application.


At the very bottom, in block capitals, is the title "Definition of Public Interest", and as the author notes:

"A definition of the public interest is attempted frequently but seldom successfully.  All regulators and all regulatory legislation either infers or directly provides an overriding constraint known as the public interest.  Regulation in most agency decisions are governed by the public interest.  The public interest is a major constraint which distinguishes the duties of an agency in making its decisions from the duties of court in issuing a decision."


And in this author's discussion of what public interest is, the author makes reference to certain cases that were in fact decided by the Ontario Energy Board.  


If I could ask you to turn to page 8‑3.  At the very beginning you will see the beginning of a discussion of various cases that have been rendered by the Ontario Energy Board, starting with cases from 1970.  


Of particular assistance, I think, are some of the excerpts from those cases that I'm going to bring to your attention now.  Perhaps one of the key characteristics of the public interest is the fact that it is variable and flexible.  And if I could take you to the paragraph on page 8‑4 that starts with the word "clearly."


And this is taken from a case decided by the Energy Board in 1985:

"Clearly there are no firm criteria for determining the public interest which would hold good in every situation.  Like 'just and reasonable' and 'public convenience and necessity', the criteria of public interests in any given situation are understood rather than defined, and it may well not serve any purpose to attempt to define these terms too precisely.  Rather, it must be left to those who have to arrive at a conclusion to strike the balance of puts and takes, pluses and minuses, that at the particular point in time are considered appropriate.  The public interest is dynamic, varying from one situation to another, if only because the values ascribed to the conflicting interests alter.  It follows that the criteria by which the public interest is served may also change according to the circumstances."


Carrying on, in another decision from 1985, which I was able to locate and is called Inter-City Gas - it's a decision that was made in January 1985 - the authors of the textbook excerpted a fair amount from that case.  They pose the question, "What is the public interest," at the very bottom of that excerpt on page 8-4 and carrying on to page 8-5.


Specifically going to the middle of the top paragraph, the Ontario Energy Board Panel made the following statement:

"The wide variety of cases in which it..." -- being public interest -- "...has played some part in a decision, effectively means that the findings of those tribunals do not lend themselves to a clear codification.  In fact, just defining what public the interest refers to is difficult in itself.  A public opposed to the building of a nuclear reactor seldom represents all the publics affected.  It does not speak for the construction unions or the mine workers.  It does not speak for the investors in the station or even all the consumers, but the public presenting its views still purports to represent the public.  Of the public interest, Mr. Justice Holmes said, we mean, of course, considerations of what is expedient for the community concerned.  Many other legal theorists have left behind similar quotations, but because of the diverse applications to which the words 'public interest' have been applied, there is not a single simple explanation of sufficient clarity to be particularly helpful."


Skipping down past the enumerated points:

"In the opinion of the Board, the public interest can only be more particularly defined by examining the facts and nature of the situation in which the test is to be used.  The public interest will consistently take the form of the facts to which it is applied, moulding itself to the specific use to which it is to be put.  Having determined that the public interest is not generally definable, the Board would add that in spite of its elusiveness, when it is applied to a specific set of facts the reasonable man of the common law has no trouble determining if a particular act meets the test.

A transmission tower, by this test, might be located in a productive, peaceful countryside, in spite of the residents' objections, if the tower is found to be in the public interest of a nearby population centre.  The public interest of the urban residents may be said to outweigh the  local interests of the rural public in those circumstances.  Lord Coke put it succinctly when he wrote: 'The law prefers the public good to the private good, and if it has to choose between prejudice to the many and mischief particular to the individuals, the individuals must suffer.'"


The authors of this textbook go on to quote another case that also actually provides some direction from the Divisional Court in Ontario that determined a case called Union Gas and Dawn.  Mr. Justice Keith - and this is an excerpt from his decision at page 8-6 - Mr. Justice Keith, in reviewing the history and origins of the present Ontario Energy Boar Act, stated -- and he was obviously dealing with a gas case, not an electricity case:

"In my view, this statute makes it crystal clear that all matters relating to or incidental to the production, distribution, transmission, or storage of natural gas are under the exclusive jurisdiction of the Ontario Energy Board.  These are all matters that are to be considered in the light of the general public interest and not local or parochial interests.  The words 'in the public interest,' which I have quoted, would seem to leave no room for doubt that it is the broad public interest that must be served."


The authors also make reference to a Federal Power Commission case, and it is from the United States.  I don't propose to take you to that.  I put it in front of you simply as part of the chapter, and simply to note that when you are reading through this on your own, that the phrase "public convenience and necessity" is considered to be synonymous with the term "public interest."  That is of importance when you look at a decision of the Supreme Court of Canada, which is excerpted at the bottom of page 8-6, going up to the top of page 8-7.  It's called Memorial Gardens Association v. Colwood Cemetery Co., and it was a statement made by Mr. Justice Abbott in a decision that was made in 1958.


Starting in the fourth sentence down, at the top of the indented paragraph:

"It would, I think, be both impractical and undesirable to attempt a precise definition of general application of what constitutes public convenience and necessity.  As has been frequently pointed out in the American decisions, the meaning in a given case should be ascertained by reference to the context and to the objects and purposes of the statute in which it is found.

As this Court held in the Union Gas case, the question whether public convenience and necessity requires a certain action is not one of fact.  It is predominantly the formulation of an opinion.  Facts must, of course, be established to justify a decision by the Commission, but that decision is one which cannot be made without a substantial exercise of administrative discretion."


That is an overview of various decisions, chiefly from the Ontario Energy Board, that deal with the definition of public interest.


At tab 2 you will find an excerpt from the case that is quoted the most fulsomely by the author, and that is the Inter-City Gas case of January 1985.  I've excerpted the face page of the case so that those who are interested in reading it further can locate it, and simply if any questions arose as to the fact situation that this case dealt with.  The fact situation is indicated to be something quite dissimilar to the one that is before this case, but yet another instance in which public interest becomes of importance, and that is the acquisition of common shares by Inter-City Gas of a competitor.


I think one of the things you should notice about the front, the face page, is that Robert W. Macaulay is the chair of that decision, and he's actually the author of a textbook, and that might be one reason why his decision ends up being reproduced so fully in the textbook.


And finally, moving on to tab 3.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  I can't believe Mr. Macaulay would do that.

[Laughter]


MS. CAMPBELL:  Isn't that shocking?


And finally, I have provided a very short excerpt from a recent case of the Supreme Court of Canada called ATCO Gas and Pipelines.  And what I had excerpted is from the dissent by Mr. Justice Binnie, B-I-N-N-I-E.  And the only purpose for providing that, and it's on page 33, paragraphs 106-107, is to indicate that although many years have gone by since the particular portions of the textbook that I read to you with the older decisions -- many years have gone by since that point in time, since those decisions were made, those decisions where still quoted by the Supreme Court of Canada when they discuss public interest.  And you'll note that the Memorial Gardens case is cited by Mr. Binnie, as is the Union Gas and Sydenham case, which is actually referred to in the Memorial Gardens case.


The purpose, as I said, of putting this brief -- providing it to my friends and providing it to the Panel, is to indicate that the principles that are outlined in the textbook and in the cases excerpted in the textbook must govern the forming of the opinion as to whether expropriation of the land is in the public interest when this Panel is making an order authorizing -- should it make an order authorizing the applicant to expropriate the land under section 99(5).


As I've indicated to my friends previously, it is not the intention of Board Counsel to make any argument.  My purpose was simply to lay out the statutory regime and the principles that apply when attempting to define public interest.  And so I will leave the argument to my friends.


Those are my submissions.


MS. SPOEL:  Thank you, Ms. Campbell.  Mr. Engelberg. 

CLOSING ARGUMENT BY MR. ENGELBERG:

MR. ENGELBERG:  Thank you, Madam Chair, Mr. Member.


I'd like to state, first of all, that because we're all here today because of section 99 of the Ontario Energy Board Act, that Hydro One Networks Inc. has complied with all the requirements administratively and the filing requirements under section 99, pursuant to the application and supporting materials that have been filed with the Board.


So that we're here today primarily, after hearing the evidence and the submissions, to ask for the Board to make the determination under subsection 99(5), as counsel for the Board has pointed out.


So that brings us to the question of what is in the public interest.


The cases that my friend has provided have been very helpful.  I'd like to refer to a couple of them, but, firstly, I'd like to state that, in general, Hydro One's submission is that ...


[Blackberry interference] 


MR. ENGELBERG:  ... is that the purpose of public utilities such as Hydro One, even without the specific requirements set out in section 26 of the Electricity Act and in section 7 of Hydro One's transmission licence, which has the force of law, are to provide electricity to the public, and, therefore, it is Hydro One's submission that that in itself shows that what is done in pursuit of those goals should be something that should be taken into account in determining what the public interest is.


I'd like to refer to the first article at tab 1 that Ms. Campbell referred to, and particularly the passage to which she referred at the bottom of page 8‑5, that this is a conclusion that can be reached by the reasonable man in the common law to determine if a particular act meets the test. 


And she went on to quote the sentence about the transmission tower.  In my submission, this is similar to the case before you today that the transmission tower and the poles for which Hydro One is seeking to obtain easements is located in a productive, peaceful countryside, but it is in the public interest, and that the Toyota plant, which the line is intended to serve and which requires the power, the community that is in the area, the employees that will be working at the Toyota plant, all of that together constitutes the public interest.


And that interest of the public, the jobs, the offshoots to the area involved, of which I submit you can take judicial notice, are all elements to be weighed against the interests that it is that Hydro One seeks to expropriate; namely, an easement.


I'd like to then take you to page 8‑7 of the same article and the top paragraph that has been quoted there from the Memorial Gardens case.  The last sentence in the top paragraph:

"As has been frequently pointed out in the American decisions, the meaning in a given case should be ascertained by reference to the context and to the objects and purposes of the statute in which it is found."


So in that regard, in my submission, it's very relevant that the right to seek expropriation and the right of the Board to grant expropriation is to be read in the context of the objects and purposes of the Ontario Energy Board Act, rather than in the context of expropriation law, in general.


I would next like to refer to the ATCO case that Board Counsel has provided, which is at tab 3 of the book of authorities, and, in particular, a passage at page 33 of 53 at tab 3, paragraph number 106, where it says:

"A regulatory power to be exercised 'in the public interest' necessarily involves accommodation of conflicting economic interests.  It has long been recognized that what is 'in the public interest' is not really a question of law or fact but is an opinion."


And I'd like to skip down to the next paragraph that's being quoted:

"The question whether public convenience and necessity requires a certain action is not one of fact.  It is predominantly the formulation of an opinion.  Facts must, of course, be established to justify a decision by the Commission, but that decision is one which cannot be made without a substantial exercise of administrative discretion. In delegating this administrative discretion to the Commission, the Legislature has delegated to that body the responsibility of deciding in the public interest."


So in light of those passages that I've quoted, I'm asking the Board to find that this expropriation of a limited interest in land is in the public interest, and I would suggest further, that to make an order, as my friend has perhaps suggested in his argument, requiring the utility to take a greater interest in land than is required for the purpose of the undertaking, is not a road that the Board should go down.


It's generally recognized that a smaller footprint is a better footprint.  Where this is no need to take land that can be used for another purpose, a greater interest should not be taken, in Hydro One's submission.


Mr. Hoglund gave evidence-in‑chief in response to questions asked of him, and in cross‑examination, as well, that land such as the land we are looking at today, where there are a couple of towers being built, proposed to be built, and several steel poles that are proposed to be built, that the land can continue to be used for farming purposes.  


And it was Mr. Streutker's evidence that the operation that he carries on, for example, is dairy farming and corn production.  It's Hydro One's submission that that land can continue to be used productively for those purposes and there would be no good cause for Hydro One to expropriate the fee simple in those lands and deny the owner the possibility of carrying on those continued operations.


I would also point out, and I would suggest that the Board can take judicial notice of it, that transmission corridors, transmission lines, have been constructed all over the province, with the smallest footprint possible 

- namely, the taking of an easement rather than a fee simple - and that this is not a case that should depart from that general principle.


Finally, Mr. MacDougall mentioned that one of his major points is the alternative of a methane gas plant or supply of power, and I would like to suggest here, during Hydro One's argument, that Mr. Hoglund's evidence has made it clear that such a solution is not a solution at all and would accomplish nothing for the purpose that we're here today.


And those are my submissions.


MS. SPOEL:  Ms. Newland, do you have anything to add?


MS. NEWLAND:  Yes, Madam Chair, I may.


CLOSING ARGUMENT BY MS. NEWLAND:

MS. NEWLAND:  Various decisions of various courts have determined that a specific individual or locale's interest is to be weighed against general public interest, and we've heard Ms. Campbell cite cases to that effect.  


If something is in the greater public interest, then the specific interest must give way, and my submissions today are intended to persuade you that the greater public interest in this case should prevail over the specific, and, I would add, would appear to be compensable interests of the affected landowners in this case.


We have an application and responses to interrogatories, and we also have the testimony of Mr. Hoglund today that explains why the transmission line that underpins the application is required.  In sum, the line is required to provide a supply of electricity to my client's car manufacturing plant that is being constructed, as we speak, just a little ways away from here.


The need for the line is embodied in the connection and cost recovery agreement that was filed in redacted version in this proceeding.  The agreement describes the commercial arrangement between Hydro One and Toyota and describes how Hydro One will fulfill its obligations under the Electricity Act and under its transmission licence.

The public interest of Hydro One's request for expropriation is dealt with in paragraphs 35 through 39 of its prefiled written evidence, its application.  As stated in paragraph 35, and I think it's important to point this out because I don't think anyone has yet, paragraph 35 states:

"Without electricity sufficient to operate the entire facility" -- and that's a reference to the Woodstock plant -- "all of the public benefits of the project cannot be achieved."


It goes on to state that:

"Low-voltage alternatives would provide insufficient capacity."


Again, that is all in paragraph 35 of Hydro One's application.


So there it is.  Low-voltage connection would not provide capacity to satisfy the electricity requirements of Toyota.  A high-voltage solution is required.


Now, we know that Hydro One considered several ways in which to provide this high-voltage connection.  These alternatives were critically considered in the environmental assessment report that was prepared in fulfillment of Hydro One's obligations under the Environmental Assessment Act.


That environmental assessment process concluded that the construction of the alternative that was selected by Hydro One as the preferred alternative would not result in any significant social, economic, or environmental effects.  And again, I'm quoting from the application here.  It's in paragraph 6 of the application where that statement is made.


Where does this leave the Board?  In my submission, the record of this proceeding clearly establishes the following facts that can lead you to a determination that the overall public interest should outweigh specific interests of the landowners in this case:


Number 1, Toyota's plant requires electricity to operate.


Number 2, it requires a reliable source in sufficient quantities.


Number 3, if it can't operate, public benefits will have to be foregone.  And in that regard, I'm talking about direct and indirect economic benefits connected with the provision of goods and services to the plant, both during the construction period and during the life of the plant.


We know, number 4, that Toyota requested Hydro One to provide the means by which it could access the electricity that Toyota requires.  And we know that Hydro One determined that a low-voltage connection would not suffice.


So here we are.  Hydro One needs to connect a high-voltage transmission line in order to fulfill its legal obligations.


We also know Hydro One considered several alternatives and chose the one that is before the Board today, in the form of expropriation or the one that underpins the expropriation application.


We know that this particular underpinning line will not result in any environmental or socioeconomic adverse effects, or even any significant effects.  We also have a commercial agreement between Hydro One and Toyota which governs the terms and conditions under which Hydro One proposes to construct this line.


So that's a summary of the evidence that supports Hydro One's application for an expropriation order.  And that's the evidence that supports the need for this high-voltage transmission line, and by extension, the need for an expropriation order as the parties, Hydro One and the landowners, have been unable to reach agreement.  And that's the evidence that supports my submission that the proposed expropriation of lands for the purpose of constructing a transmission line are clearly in the public interest.


Now, in the opposite corner, as it were, we have Mr. MacDougall's clients, one of whom, Mr. Streutker, testified today.  His testimony was to the effect that his farming operation would be inconvenienced and his dairy herd could be subject to stray voltage.


On the point of inconvenience, Madam Chair, Mr. Rupert, I would have to say that this is clearly something that could be compensated for in the compensation process, if it was established that this was something that -- you know, that there was an inconvenience.  


And similarly, with stray voltage impacts, although, as an aside, it's always been my understanding that stray voltage is an issue associated with low-voltage lines and not high-voltage lines; but in any event, again, that's something that could be considered in the compensation process.


In conclusion, I would merely state that the record of the proceeding clearly demonstrates that the specific interests of Mr. Streutker and the other landowner must give way to the greater public interest, in this case, as required by the case law.  The Board should exercise its discretion to issue the expropriation orders that Hydro One is seeking.


Those are my main submissions, but as counsel for an intervenor in this case, I don't have a right to reply to what we will possibly hear from Mr. MacDougall.  As he did give us a bit of a heads-up, I would like to address the point that he made about anaerobic digestion.


Now, I rely on and adopt Mr. Engelberg's submissions with respect to the possibility of accessing electricity generated at the Stanton farm anaerobic digester.  It would not be a reliable source of electricity at Toyota.  We would end up back at a transmission solution in any event.  But I'd like to add one thing, and that is, this morning Mr. MacDougall appeared to suggest that Toyota itself could construct an anaerobic digester on its property.


And my response is this:  Toyota is not in the business of being a generator.  It's in the business of manufacturing cars.  The property that it has assembled has been assembled for that purpose, and that purpose alone.  Toyota has exercised its right to request Hydro One to connect its system so that Toyota can access supply generated by those who are in the business of generating electricity.  Hydro One is legally obligated to provide that service.


Thank you, Madam Chair.  Those are my submissions.


MS. SPOEL:  Thank you.  Mr. MacDougall?  


CLOSING ARGUMENT BY MR. MacDOUGALL:

MR. MacDOUGALL:  Thank you, Madam Chair.  Mr. Member.  May it please the Board.


When I started out this morning with my cross-examination, I attempted to put certain propositions related to expropriation law to the witness, and you stopped it.  I will put the proposition now, as a background to my argument, and I refer to the most recent decision of the Supreme Court of Canada, which so happens to be about ten years old now.  I think that's the last case that went to the Supreme Court of Canada.


It's the case of Dell Holdings v. the Toronto Area Operating Authority.  


And I am reading from page 8 of the judgment of Mr. Justice Cory.

MS. SPOEL:  Mr. MacDougall, do you have copies of the decision for the Panel and for the other parties?


MR. MacDOUGALL:  No, I don't.


MS. SPOEL:  Can you give us the cite, please?


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Yes, I will.  It is 1997, CanLit 400, Supreme Court of Canada ‑‑ sorry [1997] 1 S.C.R. 32.  And I'm reading from page 8.  It's just a short ‑‑ just a short observation.


This was a case about compensation, but the Court, in dealing with the matter, addressed the matter of expropriation, and what Mr. Justice Cory said was this:

"The expropriation of property is one of the ultimate exercises of governmental authority.  To take all or part of a person's property constitutes a severe loss and a very significant interference with a citizen's private property rights.  It follows that the power of an expropriating authority should be strictly confined in favour of those whose rights have been affected.  This principle has been stressed by eminent writers and emphasized in decisions of this Court."


And then he goes on.  He quotes the writers.  I'll leave it with you.


Now, then, it's against that observation which, in my submission, is a cogent statement of the law of expropriation, that I ask you to consider the matter before you.


And I had -- when you pressed me this morning as to what my position was, I think I had set it out on this basis:  One, that Hydro should be invited to go back and examine into whether or not an anaerobic digester could be incorporated into this new venture at Toyota.


And in answer to my friend Ms. Newland's question, certainly I was suggesting that it be on Toyota property.  And her suggestion, respectfully, that Toyota isn't in the business of producing hydro, well, perhaps they should get into the business of producing hydro or at least get into the business of producing hydro together with Hydro One.


And, therefore, it's my submission that you should invite Hydro One to go back and look into this and look into it intensely, because we have the evidence that it is being used already, and we have the evidence that it has been used at the Stanton farm.  We don't know how many other farms, but we know that it is now a viable alternative.  


And there is no hardship on either Hydro or Toyota to go back and find out and come to this Board, and, if it isn't feasible, we'll hear about it.  If it is, then perhaps they should be invited to incorporate it.


And I just want to pick up on the evidence about this new method.  First of all, it was never considered in this application at all, and I gather from the evidence of Mr. Hoglund that it was never raised and they had no intention of considering it.


Mr. Hoglund agreed that the area in which we are sitting today is an area of intensive agricultural use, and he also agreed that the matter of the disposal ‑‑ that the disposal of liquid manure is a problem.  And why not solve two problems at once, the disposal and the supply of Hydro? 


And surely, in my submission, that is what anaerobic digesters are about, and it should be investigated.  And should have been investigated in this particular case.


The evidence from Mr. Hoglund that, well, it's going to be humongous, or he thinks it's going to be humongous, we don't know and we should have that evidence.


And, Madam Chair, Mr. Member, one of the difficulties that, in my submission, we have in this case is the little evidence that has been put before you.  We don't even know how large the Toyota site is.  My recollection was that it was 2,000 acres, but we don't know, and it may well be that there's plenty of land there to incorporate an anaerobic digester.


Now, then I turn to the other part of the argument, and it's this, that if Hydro and Toyota don't want to follow that course, then the Board should make an order that the entirety of Mr. Streutker's property be expropriated and the fee, as opposed to an easement, in Mr. Tuns, be expropriated.


And the evidence on this is, in my submission, muddy at best, because when we got into the whole business of whether they take the whole or a part, Mr. Hoglund's evidence was, well, they didn't know whether there was a policy or not.  


So you eventually allowed me to get into that area, and we find out that there was an old policy ‑ we haven't seen it yet ‑ and a new draft policy.  And I was particularly interested ‑‑ I think ‑‑ I forget what exhibit it is.  J.3.  I was particularly interested in the final recommendation, and it reads:

"Hydro One Networks will acquire:

1.  The requirement necessitates the acquisition of the fee, including but not limited to station sites and their immediate access and egress;

2.  A limited interest renders the real estate uneconomic to the affected property owner."


And that, that, Madam Chair, would raise the very issue, and it could be addressed before this Board, as to whether the placing of the towers was uneconomic, in terms of Mr. Streutker's continued operation, and you could then make the decision as to whether or not the entirety should be taken.


So, in my submission, this is the golden opportunity to say to Hydro:  Now, Hydro, you don't have a policy, and in this instance, given the evidence that we have, we're going to make you take it all.


Respectfully, Madam Chair and Mr. Member, there are no equities here working on behalf of the public bodies.  We have one of the biggest public bodies in the province of Ontario and a multinational company saying No, no, no, no, no.  We're just going to take an easement and you can live with it.


To bring it down to basic terms, what these people are really saying to you is:  Might is right, and we'll take what we want, and you live with it. 


Now, then.  The evidence from Mr. Streutker is very helpful in this, and that is, farming is a different -- it's a different industry now.  You heard his evidence that he is now in a position where he has removed all the fences and that the movement of equipment is made difficult by the erection of things like towers.  He ought not to have to put up with that, particularly when the public body can take the entirety.


Then we had the evidence from Mr. Streutker of stray voltage, and that's uncontradicted.  That's something that he's going to have to live with.  And in our submission, that's something he shouldn't have to live with.  He should be permitted to take whatever the lands are worth and start a new operation.


Now, as I said, this isn't a hardship on Hydro.  There are no equities operating in their favour.  But I was very interested in my friend's argument that we could now get into the matter of -- when we weigh up the public interest, we could get into the matter of what constitutes the public interest, and that you could, as I understood the argument, take judicial notice of all the great benefits that are going to flow from the Hydro plan.


I guess what I found a little disturbing about that was that when I attempted to open up that argument this morning, the example I gave was, was there any consideration of how many cars and how much hydro you need.  And you, of course, stopped me.  But now you are being invited to take judicial notice of all these benefits, but we can't examine into them and weigh them up against whatever the effect is on Mr. Streutker.


The whole business of public interest, in my submission, is about the length of the Chancellor's foot.  It's whatever people happen to decide at any particular time, but in my submission one of the things that must always go into a consideration of the public interest is fairness.  And I leave with you whether or not in these circumstances there has been any fairness shown to the property owners.


So, finally, this is, respectfully, a case where a public body should be told:  Look, if you want it, take the whole thing.  Don't leave these people twisting in the wind.  And I urge you, if you don't accept my first submission, that you direct Hydro One Inc. to expropriate the entirety of the Streutker property and the fee of the Tuns.


Those are my submissions.


MS. SPOEL:  Thank you, Mr. MacDougall.


Mr. Engelberg, do you have any reply submissions for any of the submissions made by counsel?


MR. ENGELBERG:  I have a very brief reply.  Less than five minutes, Madam Chair.


MS. SPOEL:  Fine.


REPLY ARGUMENT BY MR. ENGELBERG:

MR. ENGELBERG:  Although I didn't have the benefit of seeing the case that my friend relied on, Dell Holdings and the Toronto Area Operating Authority, I listened with interest to the quotation that he made, and I wrote down most of it, the fact that expropriation is the ultimate exercise of government's authority and the power of the expropriating authority should be strictly confined.


In my submission, those words probably accurately set out the position of expropriation law, and Hydro One would rely in particular on the second part of it; the power of the expropriating authority should be strictly confined.  


In my submission, that is support for the authority that an expropriation authority should not take a greater interest or more land than it needs, and should not take farmland out of production when it doesn't need to be taken out of production, and should not take a fee simple when a simple easement will do.


The second point I'd like to respond to from Mr. MacDougall's submissions is that we did not look into the feasibility of anaerobic digester generation and we should.  My response to that is, that question was raised with Mr. Hoglund.  Mr. Hoglund answered very clearly that anaerobic digestion generation is not a viable alternative here.  


A Toyota plant such as the one contemplated needs reliability that cannot be provided by an anaerobic digestion generation plant, and that transmission would be needed in any event.  So, in my submission, that has been rejected by all the evidence.


Finally, Mr. MacDougall raised in his arguments that Hydro One should take all of the Streutker land and a fee in a strip on the Tuns land, because the Hydro One draft policy that has been produced to you says that it renders the land uneconomic to the affected property owner.


My submission is that the draft policy that's provided Hydro One -- says that Hydro One would acquire a greater interest where the expropriation of an easement only would render the real estate uneconomic to the affected property owner.  


There is no evidence before the tribunal today, none filed before, and none that was given in the testimony of Mr. Streutker, that supports an allegation that the real estate would be rendered uneconomic to any of the affected property owners here today by the taking of an easement on property that's being used as dairy farm and for the growing of corn.


In fact, we heard no evidence whatever that it would render the real estate uneconomic.


Those are my responses.


MS. SPOEL:  Thank you, Mr. Engelberg. 


Thank you, counsel and witnesses.  The Board will reserve and render a written decision as soon as we possibly can.


MR. MacDOUGALL:  Thank you.


--- Whereupon the hearing concluded at 3:07 p.m. 
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